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DECLARATION OF CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 
AFFILIATES 
 

 
 

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of 

Asia Polymer Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, under the 

“Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports 

and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises”, are the same as those 

included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with 

International Financial Reporting Standard 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements”. In 

addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements 

of affiliates is included in the consolidated financial statements of Asia Polymer 

Corporation and Subsidiaries. Consequently, we do not prepare a separate set of 

combined financial statements of affiliates. 

 

 
Very truly yours, 
 
ASIA POLYMER CORPORATION 
 
By: 
 
 
 
 
  
YI-GUI WU 
Chairman 
 
 
March 5, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Asia Polymer Corporation 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Asia Polymer 

Corporation and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated balance 
sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the consolidated statements of 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and 
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 
2020 and 2019, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash 
flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the 
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC 
Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by 
the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) of the Republic of China. 
 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2020 in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and 
Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing 
standards generally accepted in the Republic of China. We conducted our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 in accordance 
with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by 
Certified Public Accountants, Rule No. 1090360805 issued by the Financial Supervisory 
Commission of the Republic of China on February 25, 2020, and auditing standards 
generally accepted in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in 
accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the 
Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2020. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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The key audit matters identified in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the 
year ended December 31, 2020 are stated as follows: 
 
Revenue Recognition - Sales Revenue from Specific Customers 
 
The amount of sales revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020 was NT$5,703,546 
thousand, which was approximately 16.01% lower than the sales revenue of NT$6,791,157 
thousand for the year ended December 31, 2019. Nevertheless, the sales revenue from 
specific customers has grown significantly compared to the average change trend of total 
sales revenue. Sales revenue from these specific customers was NT$2,316,082 thousand, 
which accounted for approximately 40.61% of net operating revenue. Therefore, we 
identified recognition of revenue from these specific customers as a key audit matter. 
The audit procedures that we performed in response to the risk were as follows: 
 
1. We obtained an understanding of the design and implementation of internal 

controls about these specific customers and tested if these controls were performed 
effectively. Such controls include credit assessments of customers, revenue 
recognition and receivables collection. 

2. We sampled and inspected purchase orders from these specific customers, shipping 
confirmations and receivables collection receipts in order to verify the accuracy of 
sales revenue. 

3. We reviewed sales returns and discounts recognized and the amounts received in 
subsequent periods to assess for any abnormalities. 

 
Other Matter 

 
We have also audited the parent company only financial statements of Asia Polymer 
Corporation as of and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 on which we 
have issued an unmodified opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of 
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and 
issued into effect by the FSC of the Republic of China, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
Those charged with governance (including the audit committee) are responsible for 
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
Republic of China, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

 
2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

 
3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of 
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with statements that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 
 
 
Deloitte & Touche 
Taipei, Taiwan Republic of China 
 
 

CPA, Cheng-Chun Chiu  

  

CPA, Hsiu-Chun Huang 

Financial Supervisory Commission 
Approved Document No. Chin Guan Cheng Liu Zi 
No.0930160267 

 Financial Supervisory Commission 
Approved Document No. Tai Tsai Cheng Liu Zi  
No.0920123784 

 
March 16, 2021 
 

Notice to Readers: 

The consolidated financial statement (Chinese version) of our company is audited by the CPA 
Cheng-Chun Chiu and CPA Hsiu-Chun Huang of Deloitte Taiwan. For the convenience of reading, the 

statement has been translated from Chinese to English. If there is any difference regarding the context or 

interpretation in the English version, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Asia  Polymer Corporat ion and Subs idiaries  

Consolidat ed balance she et  

December 31
s t

,  2020 and 2019 

Unit :  NT$  Thousand  

 

    December 31
st
, 2020  December 31

st
, 2019 

Code  Asset  Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

  Current assets         
1100  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4 and 6)    $ 605,644     4    $ 938,616     6 

1110  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss- current (Note 4 and 7)     1,085,851     6     2,646,378     16 
1120  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income- current 

(Note 4 and 8) 

 

   86,368     1     73,352     - 

1170  Accounts receivable (Note 4, 5, and 10)     545,372     3     591,523     3 
1180  Accounts receivable form related parties (Note 4, 5, 10, and 29)     197,413     1     156,784     1 

1200  Other receivables  (Note 4)     3,806     -     1,196     - 
1210  Other receivables from related parties (Note 4 and 29)     2,025     -     4,015     - 

1310  Inventories (Note 4, 5, and 11)     312,124     2     386,670     2 
1410  Prepayments     124,759     1     141,794     1 

1470  Other current assets     907     -     110     - 
11XX  Total current assets     2,964,269     18     4,940,438     29 

                       
  Non-current assets         

1517  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income- 
non-current (Note 4 and 8) 

 
   3,327,544     20     2,357,879     14 

1535  Financial assets at amortized cost- non-current (Note 4 and 9)     42,648     -     -     - 
1550  Investments accounted for using equity method (Note 4, 5, 13, and 30)     6,663,686     39     5,683,009     34 

1600  Property, plant and equipment (Note 4 and 14)     3,257,676     19     3,277,233     19 
1755  Right-of-use assets (Note 4 and 15)     424     -     -     - 

1760  Investment properties (Note 4 and 16)     522,939     3     536,565     3 
1840  Deferred tax assets (Note 4 and 25)     82,118     1     92,420     1 

1990  Other non-current assets (Note 4)     22,199     -     35,547     - 
15XX  Total non-current assets     13,919,234     82     11,982,653     71 

                       
1XXX  TOTAL    $ 16,883,503     100    $ 16,923,091     100 

           
Code  Liabilities and equity         

  Current liabilities         

2100  Short-term borrowings (Note 17)    $ 700,000     4    $ 1,100,000     7 
2110  Short-term bills payable (Note 17)     -     -     649,944     4 

2120  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss- current (Note 4 and 
7) 

 
   3,912     -     -     - 

2170  Accounts payable to unrelated parties (Note 18)     238,923     2     134,772     1 
2180  Accounts payable to related parties (Note 18 and 29)     48,833     -     52,003     - 

2200  Other payables (Note 19)     194,948     1     183,427     1 
2220  Other payables to related parties (Note 29)     49,886     1     166,588     1 

2230  Current tax liabilities (Note 4 and 25)     189,737     1     146,341     1 
2280  Lease liabilities- current (Note 4 and 15)     5,981     -     5,496     - 

2365  Refund liabilities- current (Note 20)     5,899     -     5,899     - 
2399  Other current liabilities (Note 23)     41,077     -     25,358     - 

21XX  Total current liabilities     1,479,196     9     2,469,828     15 
                       

  Non- current liabilities         

2540  Long-term borrowings (Note 17)     3,050,000     18     3,950,000     24 
2570  Deferred tax liabilities (Note 4 and 25)     42,108     -     52,720     - 

2580  Lease liabilities- non-current (Note 4 and 15)     18,946     -     24,501     - 
2640  Net defined benefit liabilities- non-current (Note 4 and 21)     155,057     1     165,868     1 

2650  Credit balance of investments accounted for using equity method (Note 4 
and 13) 

 
   16,165     -     14,049     - 

2670  Other non-current liabilities     12,486     -     16,305     - 

25XX  Total non-current liabilities     3,294,762     19     4,223,443     25 
                       

2XXX    Total liabilities     4,773,958     28     6,693,271     40 
                       

  Equity attributable to owners of the company (Note 4, 8, 22, and 25)         
  Share capital          

3110  Ordinary share     5,821,018     35     5,543,827     33 
3200  Capital surplus     33,272     -     24,400     - 

  Retained earnings         
3310  Legal reserve     1,798,210     11     1,713,152     10 

3320  Special reserve     565,379     3     565,379     3 
3350  Unappropriated retained earnings     2,890,180     17     2,507,082     15 

3300  Total retained earnings     5,253,769     31     4,785,613     28 
  Other equity interest         

3490  Other equity interest- others     1,001,486     6   (  124,020 )   (  1 ) 
                       

3XXX  Total equity     12,109,545     72     10,229,820     60 
                       

  Total liabilities and equity    $ 16,883,503     100    $ 16,923,091     100 

 
 

 

The a ccompanying notes  are an int egra l  part  of the  cons ol idated financia l  s ta tement.  

Notice to Readers: 

The consolidated financial statement (Chinese version) of our company is audited by the CPA Cheng-Chun Chiu and CPA Hsiu-Chun Huang of Deloitte Taiwan. 

For the convenience of reading, the statement has been translated from Chinese to English. If there is any difference regarding the context or interpretation in the 

English version, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion and Subsidiar ies  

Consolidated Statement Of Comprehensive Income 

For The Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019  

        ( In  Thousands of New Taiwan Dol lar s,  Except  Earnings Per Share)  

    Year 2020  Year 2019 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

4100  Net revenue (Note 4, 23 and 

29) 

 

  $ 5,703,546     100    $ 6,791,157     100 

                       

5110  Operating costs (Note 4, 11, 

21, 24, and 29) 

 

   4,574,394     80     5,755,709     85 

                       

5900  Gross profit      1,129,152     20     1,035,448     15 

           

  Operating expenses (Note 21, 

24, and 29) 

 

       

6100  Selling expenses     89,753     2     111,574     1 

6200  Administrative expenses     111,673     2     120,341     2 

6300  Research and 

development expenses 

 

   5,423     -     5,126     - 

6000  Total operating 

expenses 

 

   206,849     4     237,041     3 

                       

6900   Profits From Operations     922,303     16     798,407     12 

                       

  Non-operating income and 

expenses (Note 4, 13, 24, 

and 29) 

 

       

7100  Interest income     7,682     -     14,876     - 

7010  Other income     167,155     3     150,745     2 

7020  Other gains and losses     105,370     2     23,859     - 

7510  Interest expense   (  42,537 )     -   (  56,163 )   (  1 ) 

7060  Share of profit of 

associates  

 

   125,438     2     53,117     1 

7000  Total non-operating 

income and 

expenses 

 

   363,108     7     186,434     2 

                       

7900  Profit before income tax     1,285,411     23     984,841     14 

                       

7950  Income tax expense (Note 4 

and 25) 

 

   181,824     3     163,820     2 

                       

8200  Net profit for the year     1,103,587     20     821,021     12 

 

(cont inued)  
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    Year 2020  Year 2019 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

  Other comprehensive income 

(Loss) (Note 4, 13, 21, 22, 

and 25) 

 

       

  Items that will not be 

reclassified 

subsequently to profit 

or loss: 

 

       

8311  Remeasurements of  

defined benefit 

plan 

 

 ( $ 608 )     -    $ 5,646     - 

8316  Unrealized gains 

(loss) on 

investments in 

equity 

instruments 

 at fair value 

through other 

comprehensive 

income 

 

   1,032,335     18     122,885     2 

8330  Share of the other 

comprehensive 

income (loss) of 

associates 

accounted for 

using equity 

method 

 

   43,970     1     3,906     - 

8349  Income tax related 

to item that will 

not be  

reclassified 

subsequently to 

profit or loss 

 

 (  3,332 )     -   (  60 )     - 

8310       1,072,365     19     132,377     2 

   Items that may be  

 Reclassified 

subsequently to profit 

or loss: 

 

       

8361  Exchange 

differences on 

Translating the 

financial 

statements of 

foreign 

operations 

 

   41,058     -   (  192,308 )   (  3 ) 

(cont inued)  

 

 



- 10 - 

    Year 2020  Year 2019 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

8370  Share of the other 

comprehensive 

loss of associates 

accounted for 

using the equity 

method 

 

 (  5,315 )     -   (  8,821 )     - 

8399  Income tax relating 

to be items that 

may be 

reclassified 

subsequently  to 

profit or loss 

 

 (  8,212 )     -     38,462     1 

8360       27,531     -   (  162,667 )   (  2 ) 

8300  Other 

comprehensive 

income (loss) for 

the year, net of 

income tax 

 

   1,099,896     19   (  30,290 )     - 

                       

8500  Total 

comprehensive 

income of the year 

 

  $ 2,203,483     39    $ 790,731     12 

                       

  Earnings per share 

(Note 26) 

 

       

9710  Basic    $ 1.90         $ 1.41      

9810  Diluted    $ 1.89         $ 1.41      
 

The a ccompanying notes  are an int egra l  part  of the  consol idated financia l  s ta tement.  

 

 
Notice to Readers: 

The consolidated financial statement (Chinese version) of our company is audited by the CPA 

Cheng-Chun Chiu and CPA Hsiu-Chun Huang of Deloitte Taiwan. For the convenience of reading, the 

statement has been translated from Chinese to English. If there is any difference regarding the context or 

interpretation in the English version, the Chinese version shall prevail. 
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As ia  P o ly m er  Corp ora t ion  a n d  su b s id ia r i es  

C on so l id a t ed  s t a t em en t  o f  ch a n g es  in  e qu it y  

F or  Th e Yea r s  En d ed  D e c e mb er  3 1 ,  2 0 2 0  a n d  2 0 1 9  

 ( I n  T hou sa n d s  N e w Ta i wa n D o l la r s )  
    Equity Attributable to Owners of the company (Note 4, 8, 22, and 23)                                                                               
                Other equity    
                Exchange differences 

on 
Translating the 

Financial Statements of 
Foreign Operations 

 Unrealized gains (loss) 
on Financial Assets at 

Fair Value Through 
Other comprehensive 

income 

  
                   
    Share Capital     Retained earnings     

Code 
   Shares (In thousands)          Ordinary 

         Shares 
 Capital surplus  Legal reserve  Special reserve  Unappropriated 

Earnings  
 

 
Total 
equity 

A1  Balance on January 1, 2019     554,382    $ 5,543,827    $ 19,619    $ 1,684,469    $ 565,379    $ 1,851,499   ( $ 59,292 )   ( $ 1,065 )    $ 9,604,436 
                                                
A3  Effects of retrospective application     -     -     -     -     -   (  855 )     -     -   (  855 ) 
                                                
A5  Balance at January 1, 2019 as Restated     554,382     5,543,827     19,619     1,684,469     565,379     1,850,644   (  59,292 )   (  1,065 )     9,603,581 
                                                
  Appropriation of the 2018 of earnings                    
B1  Legal reserve      -     -     -     28,683     -   (  28,683 )     -     -     - 
B5  Cash dividends distributed     -     -     -     -     -   (  166,315 )     -     -   (  166,315 ) 
                                                
C3  Reclassification of past dividends to capital 

surplus 
 

   -     -     3,087     -     -     -     -     -     3,087 
                                                
C7  Changes in capital surplus form investments in 

associates accounted for using equity method 
 

   -     -     1,694     -     -   (  3,328 )     -     370   (  1,264 ) 
                                                
D1  Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2019     -     -     -     -     -     821,021     -     -     821,021 
                                                
D3  Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended 

December 31,2019 net of income tax 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     4,063   (  162,667 )     128,314   (  30,290 ) 
                                                
D5  Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended 

December 31,2019 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     825,084   (  162,667 )     128,314     790,731 
                                                
Q1  Disposition of instrument in equity instruments 

designated as at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

 

   -     -     -     -     -     29,680     -   (  29,680 )     - 
                                                
Z1  Balance at December 31, 2019     554,382     5,543,827     24,400     1,713,152     565,379     2,507,082   (  221,959 )     97,939     10,229,820 
                                                
  Appropriation of the 2019 earnings                    
B1  Legal reserve      -     -     -     85,058     -   (  85,058 )     -     -     - 
B5  Cash dividend distributed     -     -     -     -     -   (  332,630 )     -     -   (  332,630 ) 
B9  Share dividend to distributed     27,719     277,191     -     -     -   (  277,191 )     -     -     - 
                                                
C3  Reclassification of past dividends to capital 

surplus 
 

   -     -     901     -     -     -     -     -     901 
                                                
C7  Changes in capital surplus form investments in 

associates accounted for using equity method 
 

   -     -     7,971     -     -   (  7,522 )     -     7,522     7,971 
                                                
D1  Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2020     -     -     -     -     -     1,103,587     -     -     1,103,587 
                                                
D3  Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended 

December 31,2020 net of income tax 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     1,263     27,531     1,071,102     1,099,896 
                                                
D5  Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended 

December 31,2020 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     1,104,850     27,531     1,071,102     2,203,483 
                                                
Q1  Disposition of instrument in equity instruments 

designated as at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

 

   -     -     -     -     -   (  19,351 )     -     19,351     - 
                                                
Z1  Balance at December 31, 2020     582,101    $ 5,821,018    $ 33,272    $ 1,798,210    $ 565,379    $ 2,890,180   ( $ 194,428 )    $ 1,195,914    $ 12,109,545 

 

The a ccompanying notes  are an int egra l  part  of the  consol idated financia l  s ta tement.  
.  

 

 

Notice to Readers: 

The consolidated financial statement (Chinese version) of our company is audited by the CPA Cheng-Chun Chiu and CPA Hsiu-Chun Huang of Deloitte Taiwan. For the convenience of reading, the statement has been translated from Chinese 

to English. If there is any difference regarding the context or interpretation in the English version, the Chinese version shall prevail.  
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Asia Polymer Corporat ion and Subs idiar ies  

Consolidated statement of cash flows  

For The Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

Code    Year 2020  Year 2019 

  Cash flows from operating activities     

A10000  Income before income tax     $ 1,285,411    $ 984,841 

A20010  Adjustments for:     

A20100  Depreciation expense     314,601     304,100 

A20200  Amortization expense     35     35 

A20400  Net (gain) loss on fair value 

change of financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss 

 

 (  25,388 )   (  44,078 ) 

A20900  Interest expense     42,537     56,163 

A21200  Interest income   (  7,682 )   (  14,876 ) 

A21300  Dividend income   (  104,544 )   (  83,146 ) 

A22300  Share of profit of associates   (  125,438 )   (  53,117 ) 

A22500  Loss on disposal of property, plant 

and equipment 

 

   -     20 

A23200  Loss on disposal of investment 

using equity method 

 

   527     - 

A23700  Reversal of write-down of  

inventories 

 

 (  408 )   (  4,039 ) 

A24100  Net loss (gain) on foreign currency 

exchange 

 

 (  2,813 )     4,534 

A30000  Change in operating assets and 

liabilities 

 

   

A31115  Financial assets mandatorily 

classified as at fair value through 

profit or loss 

 

   1,589,827   (  989,589 ) 

A31130  Notes receivable     -     472 

A31150  Accounts receivable      48,844     115,232 

A31160  Accounts receivable from related 

parties 

 

 (  40,524 )     9,347 

A31180  Other receivables   (  2,387 )   (  28 ) 

A31190  Other receivable from related 

parties 

 

   1,990   (  1,545 ) 

A31200  Inventory     74,954     396,647 

A31230  Prepayments     17,035   (  12,812 ) 

A31240  Other current assets   (  797 )     - 

A32110  Financial liability held for trading     -   (  2,074 ) 

A32150  Accounts payable      104,151   (  123,334 ) 

A32160  Accounts payable from related 

parties 

 

 (  3,109 )   (  31,000 ) 

A32180  Other payables      13,092     47,298 

A32190  Other payables from related parties   (  116,748 )     38,723 

A32230  Other current liabilities     12,519   (  310 ) 

A32240  Net defined benefit liabilities   (  11,420 )   (  37,156 ) 

(cont inued)  
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Code    Year 2020  Year 2019 

A33000  Cash generated from (used in) 

operations 

 

   3,064,265     560,308 

A33100  Interest received     7,459     15,143 

A33300  Interest paid   (  43,096 )   (  55,801 ) 

A33500  Income tax paid   (  150,282 )   (  21,029 ) 

AAAA  Net cash generated from (used in) 

operating activities 

 

   2,878,346     498,621 

             

  Cash flows from investing activities     

B00020  Proceeds from sale of financial assets at 

fair value through other 

comprehensive income-current 

 

   12,277     45,727 

B00030  Capital reduction of financial assets at 

fair value through other 

comprehensive income 

 

   34,135     24,690 

B00040  Acquisition of financial assets at 

amortized cost 

 

 (  42,648 )     - 

B01800  Acquisition of associates   (  783,964 )   (  1,280,719 ) 

B02400  Proceeds from capital reduction of 

investments accounted for using 

equity method 

 

   3,876     - 

B02700  Payments of property, plant and 

equipment 

 

 (  284,827 )   (  68,524 ) 

B02800  Proceeds from disposal of property, 

plant and equipment 

 

   -     182 

B03700  Decrease (increase) in refundable 

deposits 

 

 (  1 )     2 

B07600  Dividends received     131,573     147,795 

B09900  Increase in other non-current assets     13,314   (  31,618 ) 

BBBB  Net cash used in investing activities   (  916,265 )   (  1,162,465 ) 

             

  Cash flows from financing activities     

C00100  Repayments of short-term borrowings   (  400,000 )   (  250,000 ) 

C00600  Proceeds from (repayments of) 

short-term bills payable 

 

 (  650,000 )     50,000 

C01600  Proceeds from long-term borrowings     5,400,000     12,500,000 

C01700  Repayment of long-term borrowings   (  6,300,000 )   (  11,650,000 ) 

C03100  Decrease in guarantee deposit received     3,200     - 

C04020  Repayment of the principal portion of 

lease liabilities 

 

 (  5,917 )   (  5,864 ) 

C04300  Increase (decrease) in other non-current 

liabilities 

 

 (  3,819 )     1,249 

C04500  Dividends paid to owners of the 

company 

 

 (  332,685 )   (  166,340 ) 

CCCC  Net cash generated from financing 

activities 

 

 (  2,289,221 )     479,045 

             

(cont inued)  
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Code    Year 2020  Year 2019 

DDDD  Effect of exchange rate changes on the 

balance of cash and cash equivalents held 

in foreign currencies 

 

 (  5,832 )   (  10,788 ) 

             

EEEE  Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents   (  332,972 )   (  195,587 ) 

             

E00100  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 

of the year 

 

   938,616     1,134,203 

             

E00200  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

year 

 

  $ 605,644    $ 938,616 
 

 

The a ccompanying notes  are an int egra l  part  of the  consol idated financia l  s ta tement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notice to Readers: 
The consolidated financial statement (Chinese version) of our company is audited by the CPA 

Cheng-Chun Chiu and CPA Hsiu-Chun Huang of Deloitte Taiwan. For the convenience of reading, the 

statement has been translated from Chinese to English. If there is any difference regarding the context or 

interpretation in the English version, the Chinese version shall prevail. 
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion and Subsidiar ies  

Notes for conso lidated financial statement  

January 1
s t

 to  December 31
s t

,  2020 and 2019 

(unless otherwise noted, the unit  o f the amount  is NT$ Thousand)  

 

1.  Company history 

  Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (hereinaft er referred to  as “the company” 

was founded in January 1977 to engage with the manufactur ing and 

market ing o f low-density po lyethylene, medium density po lyethylene, and 

ethylene vinyl acetate. 

  Our stock is listed in Taiwan Stock Exchange for t rading. Up to 

December 31
st

,  2020, the total shareho lding rat io  of ordinary shares held 

by the ult imate parent  ent it y,  USI Corporat ion (USI),  is 36.08%. 

  The conso lidated financial statement  is presented by the funct iona l 

currency, New Taiwan Dollar,  used in our company.  

2.   Date and procedure o f approving financ ial statement  

  The conso lidated financial statement  was approved by the Board o f 

Directors on March 5
t h

,  2021.  

3. Appliable new published and revised standards and int erpretat ion s 

1) First -t ime preparat ion shall apply the effect ive Internat ional Financia l 

Report ing Standards (IFRS), Internat iona l Account ing Standards (IAS),  

Interpretat ions (IFRIC), and Interpretat ion Announcement  (SIC) 

(here inafter referred to  all above as “IFRSs”) recognized and published 

by Financia l Supervisory Commission (hereinafter referred to as FSC).  

The applicat ion o f revised IFRSs recognized by FSC will not  cause 

significant  changes in the account ing policies used by our company and 

the ent it y controlled by our company (hereinafter referred to  as “the 

conso lidated company”.  

2)  Applicable IFRSs recognized by FSC in 2021  

Notice to Readers: 
The Interim consolidated financial statement (Chinese version) of our company is reviewed by the CPA Cheng-Chun 
Chiu and CPA Hsiu-Chun Huang of Deloitte Taiwan. For the convenience of reading, the statement has been translated 

from Chinese to English. If there is any difference regarding the context or interpretation in the English version, the 
Chinese version shall prevail. 
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New/ revised/ modified standards and interpretations  

Effective date published by 

IASB 

The revised IFRS 4 is “applicable to the extension of 

temporary exemption specified in IFRS 9”. 

 Effective from the 

publication date 

The revised “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – 

phrase 2” in IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and 

IFRS 16. 

 Effective for the reporting 

period after January 1
st
, 

2021 

Revised “COVID-19 Pandemic-related Rental 

Concessions“ in IFRS 16. 

 Effective for the reporting 

period after June 1
st
, 

2020. 

 

3)   IFRSs that  have been published by IASB but  not been approved and 

published for effect iveness by FSC.  

New/ revised/ modified standards and interpretations 

 Effective date published by 

IASB(Note 1) 

“Annual improvements in the cycle of 2018-2020”  January 1
st
, 2022 (Note 2) 

Revised “Update of Index to Conceptual. 

Framework”  in IFRS 3 

 January 1
st
, 2022 (Note 3) 

Revised “Sale or Contribution of Assets between an  

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture “ in IFRS 

10 and IAS 28 

 Pending 

“Insurance contract” in IFRS 17  January 1
st
, 2023 

Revision of IFRS 17  January 1
st
, 2023 

Revise “Liabilities Classification to Current or 

Non-current” in IAS 1 

 January 1
st
, 2023 

Revised “Disclosure of Accounting Policy” in IAS 1  January 1
st
, 2023 (Note 6) 

Revised “Definition of Accounting Estimate” in IAS 

8 

 January 1
st
, 2023 (Note 7) 

Revised “Property, Plant and Equipment: Achieving 

the Price before the predetermined state” in IAS 16 

 January 1
st
, 2022 (Note 4) 

Revised “Onerous Contract – Cost of Performing the 

Contract” in IAS 37 

 January 1
st
, 2022 (Note 5) 

 

Remark 1: Unless otherwise noted, the new/ revised/ modified 

standards or interpretat ions above shall be effect ive in the 

annual report ing per iod start ing after the publicat ion date.  

Remark 2: The revision of IFRS 9 is applicable to the exchange o f 

provision modificat ion on financial liabilit ies occurred in the 

annual report ing per iod start ing after January 1
st

,  2022. The 

revis ion o f “agr iculture” in IAS 41 is applicable to  fair value 

measurement  in the annual report ing per iod start ing after  

January 1
s t

,  2022. The revis ion of “first -t ime applicat ion of 
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IFRSs” in IFRS 1 is t he ret rospect ive applicat ion to  the annual 

report ing per iod start ing after January 1
s t

,  2022.  

Remark 3: Enterpr ises that  carry out  merger or acquisit ion  with the 

acquis it ion date in the annual report ing per iod start ing after 

January 1
s t

,  2022 shall be applicable to  the revis ion.  

Remark 4: Plant ,  property and equipment  that  achieve the locat ion and 

status required in t he operat ing method expected by the 

management  level after January 1
st

,  2021 shall be applicable to 

the revision.  

Remark 5: Contacts with all the obligat ions not  being performed on 

January 1
s t

,  2022 will be applicable to  the revis ion.  

Remark 6: The deferral in the annual report ing per iod start ing after  

January 1
s t

,  2023 shall be applicable to  the revis ion.  

Remark 7: Changes in account ing est imates and account ing po licies 

happened in the annual report ing per iod start ing after Januar y 

1
s t

,  2023 shall be applicable to  the revision.  

 

 a. The revis ion o f “disclosure o f account ing policy” in IAS 1  

  The revision specifies that  the consolidated company shal l 

determine the disc losure o f important  account ing po licy based on 

the definit ion o f mater ialit y.  The account ing po licy informat ion 

will be regarded as significance if it  can be reasonably expected to  

affect  the decis ion-making based on the related financia l 

statement  by the main users o f the general financia l statement .  

The revis ion also clar ifies:  

 Account ing po licy informat ion related to  non-major t ransact ion,  

other mat ters or situat ions will be regarded non-significant ,  and 

the conso lidated company does not  need to  disclose the 

informat ion related.  

 The conso lidated company might  determine the relevant  

informat ion o f account ing po licy as significan t  due to  the 

nature of t ransact ion, other mat ters or situat ions even though 

the amount  is not  significant .  
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 Not all the informat ion o f account ing policy related to  major  

t ransact ions,  other mat ters or situat ions shall be significant .  

  In addit ion, the revis ion also demonstrates the informat ion 

might  be mater ial if it  is related to  major t ransact ions,  other  

mat ters or situat ions as well as invo lves with the fo llowing 

situat ions.   

 (1) The conso lidated company changes the account ing po licy 

dur ing the report ing per iod, and the change causes significant  

changes o f the informat ion provided in t he financia l 

statement .   

 (2) The conso lidated company selects t he applicable account ing 

policy from the opt ions permit ted in the standards.   

 (3) Due to the lack o f regulat ions on the specific standard, the 

conso lidated company establishes the account ing po lic y 

according to “Account ing Po licy, Account ing Est imate Chang 

and Mistakes” in IAS 8.  

 (4) The conso lidate company discloses the account ing po lic y 

determined by exercising significance judgement  or 

assumpt ions.  Or  

 (5) It  invo lves with complicated regulat ions to handle t he 

account ing, and the users o f the financial statement  rely on 

the informat ion to  understand the major t ransact ions,  other  

mat ters or situat ions.  

 b.  The revis ion o f “definit ion o f account ing est imate” in IAS 8  

  The revis ion specifies that  account ing est imate refers to  the 

currency amount  in the financia l statement  affected by uncertaint y 

of measurement .  When us ing the applicable account ing po licy, the 

conso lidated company might  need to  evaluate the items in the 

financial statement  with the currency amount  that is not  able to be 

observed direct ly but  could only be est imated. Therefore,  

evaluat ing techno logy and input  value shall be used to establish 

account ing est imate in order to  achieve the purpose. If the impact  

on the account ing est imate caused by the change o f eva luat ing 

techno logy or input  value is not  from the correct ion o f pr io r  
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per iod error,  the change shall be regarded as t he change o f 

account ing est imate.  

  Moreover,  the revision also demonstrates the informat ion might  be 

mater ial if it  is related to major t ransact ions,  other mat ters or 

situat ions as well as invo lves with the fo llowing situat ions.  

The conso lidated company changes the account ing po licy dur ing the 

report ing per iod, and the change causes significant  changes of the 

informat ion provided in the financia l statement .   

The conso lidated company selects the applicable account ing po lic y 

from the opt ions permit ted in t he standards .  

Due to the lack of regu lat ions on the spec ific standard, the conso lidated 

company establishes the account ing po licy according to “Account ing 

Policy, Account ing Est imate Change and Mistakes” in IAS 8.  

The conso lidate company discloses the account ing po licy determined 

by exercising significance judgement  or assumpt ions,  or it  invo lves 

with complicated regulat ions to  handle the account ing, and the users o f 

the financ ial statement  rely on the informat ion to  understand the majo r  

t ransact ions,  other mat ters or situat ions.  

  By the date that  the conso lidated financial statement  is approved 

and published, the conso lidated company st ill cont inues evaluat ing the 

impact  of revis ion of other standards and interpretat ions on financ ia l 

status and financial performance. Re levant  resul t s will be disclosed 

when the evaluat ions are completed.  

4.  Summarized explanat ion o f mater ial account ing po licy  

1) Statement  of compliance  

  The conso lidated financia l statement  was prepared according to 

Regulat ions Governing the Preparat ion of Financial Reports by 

Secur it ies Issuers and the effect ive IFRSs recognized and published by 

FSC.  

2) Basis o f preparat ion 

  Other than using financial ins t rument  evaluated at  fair value and 

net  defined benefit  liabilit y recognized at fair value based on present  

value o f a defined benefit  obligat ion  deduct ing plan assets,  the 
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conso lidated financial statement  was prepared according to the basis  

of histor ical costs.  

  The fair value measurement  can be classified into leve l 1 to leve l 

3 based on the observabilit y and importance of the input  values.  

 a. Level 1 input value: It refers to the quotation of the same asset or liability in 

the active market that can be obtained on the measurement day (without 

adjustment). 

 b.  Level 2 input value: It refers to the input value of the asset or the liability that 

can be directly (that is the price) or indirectly (that is the estimate from the 

price) observed other than the quotation on the level 1. 

 c. Level 3 input value: It refers to the input value of the asset or the liability that 

cannot be observed. 

3)   Standards used to dist inguish current  and non-current  assets and 

liabilit ies  

  Current  assets include:  

 a. Assets held mainly for the purpose o f t rading;  

 b.  Assets that  are expected to  be realized within 12 months after the 

date of balance sheet ; and  

 c. Cash and cash equivalent s (but  not  limit ed to  the limitat ion by 

exchange or sett lement  of liabilit y more than 12 months after the 

date of balance sheet).  

  Current  liabilit ies include:  

 a. Liabilities held mainly for the purpose of trading;  

 b.  Liabilities that are due and settled within 12 months after the date of balance 

sheet (even though the long-term refinancing has been completed or payment 

agreement has been re-arranged between the date of balance sheet and the date 

of approving and publishing the financial statement, it will be regarded as 

current liability), and  

 c. Liabilities that are not able to be deferred to at least 12 months after the date of 

balance sheet without conditions. However, the classification will not be 

affected if the provision of the liability might be settled by issuing equity 

instrument based on the selection of the counterparty of the trading. 
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  Current  assets or current  liabilit ies that  do not  belong to any o f 

above shall be classified as non-current  assets or non-current  

liabilit ies.  

4)  Basis o f conso lidat ion 

  The conso lidated financia l statement  includes the financia l 

statements from our company and the ent it ies controlled by our  

company (subsidiar ies).  The conso lidated income statement  has 

inc luded the operat ing gains or  losses in the merged or disposed 

subsidiary from the acquis it ion date or unt il the disposal date of the 

year.  The financial statements from the subsidiar ies have been adjusted 

to  make sure the account ing po licy used is the same as that  in t he 

conso lidated company. When prepar ing the conso lidated financia l 

statement ,  the t rading, account  balance, revenue, and expense among 

each ent it y have been all e liminated.  The total comprehens ive income 

from the subsidiar ies is at t ributed to the shareho lders of the comp any 

and its non-controlling interest  even it  makes the non-controlling 

int erest  as lo ss balance.  

  When the change o f ownership int erest  on the subs idiary made by 

the conso lidated company does not  cause the loss of control,  it  shall be 

handed as equity t ransact ion. The book value o f the conso lidated 

company and non-controlling interest  have been adjusted to  reflect  the 

change of relat ive equity in the subsidiary.  The difference between the 

adjusted amount  on the noon-controlling int erest  and the fair value o f 

considerat ion paid or received will be direct ly recognized as equity as 

well as at t ributed to  the shareho lders in the company. Please refer to  

Note 12 and at tached Table 6 -7 for the list  of subsid iar ies,  shareho lding 

rat io ,  and business items.  

5) Foreign currency 

  When each ent it y prepares the financial statement ,  a record of 

funct ional currency shall be converted with the exchange rate on the 

t rading date if the t ransact ion is done by the currency ( foreign currency)  

that  is not  the funct ional currency used in  the ent it y.   

  Foreign currency monetary item shall be exchanged with the 

closing rate on each balance sheet  date.  The foreign exchange 
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difference caused by the set t lement  of monetary items or the exchange 

of monetary items shall be recognized as profit  or loss for the per iod.  

  Nonmonetary it ems o f foreign currency measured at  fair value 

shall be exchanged by the exchange rate on the fair value measurement  

date.  The exchange difference generated shall be listed as the profit  or 

lo ss for the per iod.  However,  the exchange difference generated from 

the change of fair value that  is recognized in other comprehens ive 

income shall be listed in other comprehensive income.  

  The nonmonetary items o f foreign currency measured by histor ica l 

costs shall be exchanged with the exchange rate of the t ransact ion date,  

and it  will not  be evaluated again.  

  When prepar ing the conso lidated financial statement ,  the asset s 

and the liabilit ies of the foreign operations ( including subsidiar ies,  

associates,  or branch companies that  are in the different  from our  

company or use different  currency from our company)  shall be 

exchanged to NTD with the exchange rate on each balance sheet  date.  

The items o f revenue and expense shall be converted with the average 

exchange rate for the per iod, and the exchange difference generated 

shall be listed in other comprehensive income.  

  I f t he conso lidate company disposes all the equity in the foreign 

operat ion or  disposes part  of equity in the subsidiar y of t he foreign 

operat ion but  loses control,  or disposes joint  agreement  in the foreign 

operat ion, or the retained surplus o f the asso ciate is a financial asset  

and is handled according to  account ing policy o f financial inst rument ,  

all t he accumulated exchange difference related to  the foreign 

operat ion will be re-classified to profit  or loss.  

  I f t he part ial disposal in t he subsidiary o f foreign operat ion does 

not  cause the loss o f control,  the accumulated exchange difference shal l 

be re-allocated to  the non-controlling interest  of the subsid iar y 

according to the rat io  instead of recogniz ing it  as pro fit  or loss.  Under  

other situat ions o f part ial disposal in  the foreign operat ion, the 

accumulated exchange difference shall be re -classified to  profit  or loss 

according to  the rat io  of disposal.  

6) Inventory 
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  Inventory includes raw mater ials,  commodit ies,  semi-products,  

and finished products.  Inventory shall be measured by cost  or net  

realizable value,  depending on which one is lower.  When compar ing the 

cost  and the net  realizable va lue,  it  shall be based on individual item 

except  inventory in the same category. Net  realizable value refers to  

the balance o f est imated selling pr ice under normal situat ion deduct ing 

the est imated cost  that  might  be invested all the way to complet ion as 

well as the est imated cost  required for concluding the sales.  The 

calculat ion o f inventory cost  uses  weighted average method. 

7) Investment  using equity method  

  Associates refers to the enterpr ises that  the conso lidated company 

exercises important  impact  but  not  its subsidiar ies or jo int  ventures.  

  The conso lidated company applies equity method when handing 

the invested associates.  Under the equity method, the investment  to the 

associate is recognized as the cost  init ially.  The book value after  

acquis it ion date will be increased or decreased along with the profit  or 

lo ss in t he associate ent it led by the consolidated company as well a s 

other comprehensive income share and profit  allocat ion. In addit ion,  

the change o f ent it y in t he associate shall be recognized according to  

shareho lding rat io .  

  The amount  of acquis it ion cost  that  is  over the ident ifiable asset  in 

the associate ent it led by the conso lidated company on the acquis it io n 

date and the share of net  fair value on the liabilit y shall be listed as 

goodwill.  The goodwill is inc luded in t he  book value of the investment  

and must  not  be amort ized.  The amount  of t he ident ifiable asset  in the 

associate ent it led by the conso lidated company on the acquisit ion date 

and the share o f net  fair value on the liabilit y that  is over the 

acquis it ion cost  shall be listed as profit  or loss for the per iod.  

  When the associate issues new shares and the invested equit y 

increased or decreased due to the conso lidated company fails to  

purchase new shares based on the shareho lding rat io  and causes the 

change on shareho lding rat io ,  the change of its number adjusts  the 

capital reserve, using equit y method to recognize the change of net  

value in t he associate and using equity method for investment .  If the 
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failure o f purchasing or acquir ing based on the shareho lding rat io  

causes t he decrease o f the ownership interest  in t he associate,  the 

amount  recognized in other comprehensive income related to the 

associate shall be re-classified according to  the rat io  of decrease.  The 

basis o f it s account ing t reatment  shall be the same as the basis fo llowed 

if the associate is to d irect ly d ispose the relevant  asset  or liabilit y.  I f 

the above adjustment  is to be credited to  the capital surplus but  the 

balance o f the cap ital surplus generated from the investment  using 

equity method is insuffic ient ,  the difference sha ll be credited to  

retained earnings.  

  When the shares in the associate lost  by the conso lidated company 

is equal to  or more than its equity in the associate (including the book 

value o f investment  to  the associate using equity method and other  

substant ial long-term equ ity o f net  investment  t o the associate from the 

conso lidated company),  further losses shall stop being recognized. The 

conso lidated company will only recognize addit ional loss and liabilit y 

for legal obligat ion or construct ive obligat ion invo lved or the scope o f 

payment  paid on behalf o f the associate.  

  When evaluat ing impairment ,  the conso lidated company shall t reat  

the who le book value ( including goodwill) invested as a single asset  to 

compare the recoverable amount  and the book value for impairment  test .  

The recognized impairment  loss will not  be amort ized to  any asset  that  

consist s o f the book value o f the investment .  Any reversal o f 

impair ment  loss can be recognized within the scope of subsequent  

increase o f recoverable amount  for the investment .  

  The conso lidated company shall stop using equity me thod when 

the date that  the investment  is no longer its associate.  The retained 

equity towards the origina l associate shall be measured at  fair value.  

The difference between the fair va lue & the disposal proceeds and the 

book value of the investment  on the  day stop using equity method shal l 

be listed to  profit  or loss for the per iod. Moreover,  All the amount  

recognized in other comprehensive income related to  the associate shall 

use the same bas is o f account ing t reatment  as t he basis that  must  be 

fo llowed if the associate direct ly disposes relevant  assets or liabilit ies.  
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  The profit s or losses generated from the upstream, downstream,  

and side-st ream transact ions between the conso lidated company and it s  

associate shall only be recognized in  the conso lidate f inanc ial 

statement  within the scope that  is not relevant  to the equity in the 

associate possessed by the conso lidated.  

8) Property,  plant ,  and equipment  

  Property,  plant ,  and equipment  are recognized ass costs,  and shal l 

be measured subsequent ly with the amo unt  of cost  deduct ing 

accumulated depreciat ion and accumulated impa irment  loss.  

  The property,  plant ,  and equipment  under construct ion shall be 

recognized with the amount  o f cost  deduct ing accumulated impairment  

lo ss.  Costs include expenses of pro fessiona l service and the borrowing 

cost  that  meets the condit ions o f capit alizat ion. This kind o f assets 

shall be classified to  the proper category for property,  plant ,  and 

equipment  when the construct ion is completed and the expected using 

status is achieved as well as started to  make provision for depreciat ion.  

  Except  that  no provision o f depreciat ion for pr ivate -owned lands,  

the rest  property,  plant ,  and equipment  shall be made provis ion fo r  

depreciat ion independent ly to  each majo r part based on linear basis  

within the service life.  The conso lidated company sh all review the 

methods used to est imate service life,  residual value,  and depreciat ion 

at  least  on each fiscal closing date as well as the impact  of prospect ive 

applicat ion on the change o f account ing est imate s.  

  When property,  plant ,  and equipment  are de recognized, the 

difference between the net  disposal proceeds and the book value o f the 

asset  shall be recognized in the profit  or loss.  

9) Investment  property 

  Investment  property is the property held for the purpose of earning 

the rent  or capital appreciat ion, or both ( including r ight -of-use asset  

that  meets the definit ion o f investment  property).  Investment  property 

also includes the lands that  are current ly possessed but  have not been 

decided for the purpose of use in t he future.  

  Private-owned investment  property shall be measured as cost  

( including t ransact ion cost) init ia lly,  and it  shall be subsequent ly 



- 26 - 

measured with the amount  of cost  deduct ing accumulated depreciat ion 

and accumulated impairment  loss.  

  Investment  property obtained through lease shall  be measured as 

cost  init ia lly.  It  shall be subsequent ly measured with the amount  of cost  

deduct ing accumulated deprec iat ion and accumulated impairment  lo ss  

as well as adjusted the remeasurement  o f lease liabilit y.  

  All investment  propert ies shall be made  provision for deprec iat ion 

based on linear basis.  

  When the investment  property is  derecognized, the difference 

between net  disposal proceeds and the book value of the asset  shall be 

recognized in t he pro fit  or loss.  

10) Intangible asset  

 a. Independent acquisition 

  Intangible assets with defined service life that  are acquired 

independent ly shall be measured as cost init ially.  They sha ll be 

measured with the amount  of cost  deduct ing accumulated 

amort izat ion and accumulated impairment  loss afterwards.  

Intangible assets shall be amort ized based on linear basis within 

the service life.  The conso lidated company shall review the 

method used to  est imate service life ,  residual value,  and  

amort izat ion at  least  on each fiscal closing day as well as the 

impact  of prospect ive applicat ion on the change of account ing 

est imates.  Intangible assets with non-defined service life shall be 

recognized by cost  deduct ing accumulated impairment  loss.  

 b.  Derecognition 

  When derecognizing intangible assets,  the difference between 

the net  disposal proceeds and the book value of the asset  sha ll be 

recognized as the profit  or loss for the per iod.  

11) Impairment  loss o f property,  plant  and equipment ,  r ight -of-use asset ,  

int angible asset ,  and assets related to  contract  cost  

  The conso lidated shall evaluate whether there is any sign showing 

the property,  plant  and equipment ,  right -of-use asset ,  and int angible 

asset  invo lved with impairment  loss on each date of balance sheet .  If 

there is any indicat ion of impairment  loss,  the recoverable amount  o f 
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the asset  shall be evaluated. In case of failure in est imat ing the 

recoverable amount  for individual asset ,  the conso lidated company 

shall evaluate the recoverable amount  at  the cash generat ing unit  that  

the asset  belongs to .  Corporate assets  shall be allocated to each  

individual cash generat ing unit  based on a reasonable and consistent  

basis.  

  For intangible assets with non-defined service life and unava ilable 

to be used yet  shall be carr ied out impairment  test at least  every year or 

when there is a sign o f impairment .  

  Recoverable amount  is fair value deduct ing selling cost  and higher  

use value.  I f t he recoverable amount  for individual asset  or cash 

generat ing unit  is lower than its book value, the book value o f the asset  

or cash generat ing unit  shall be reduced back to its recoverable amount .  

The impairment  lo ss shall be recognized in pro fit  or loss.  

  Inventory recognized due to the contract  with customers shall be 

listed as impairment  fir st  according to  inventory impairment  regulat ion.  

Then, it  shall be recognized as impairment  loss according to  the amount  

of balance between the excessive book value o f the contract  cost 

related to the asset  and expected considerat ion receivable from the 

relevant  product or service .  After that ,  the book value o f the asset  

relevant  to  the contract  cost  shall be inc luded into the relevant  cash 

generat ing unit  to carry ou t the impairment  evaluat ion in the cash 

generat ing unit .  

  When the impairment  lo ss is  r eversed in the future,  the book value 

of the asset ,  the cash generat ing unit  or the asset  relevant  to  the 

contract  cost  shall be adjusted to  the recoverable amount  revised.  

However,  the increased book value must  not  exceed the book value 

(deduct ing amort izat ion or depreciat ion) determined on the asset ,  the 

cash generat ing unit ,  or the asset  relevant  to  contract  cost  before the 

impair ment  loss recognized in the previous fiscal year.  The reversal o f 

impair ment  loss shall be reco gnized in t he profit  or loss.  

12)  Financia l inst rument  
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  Financial assets and financia l liabilit ies shall be recognized in the 

conso lidated balance sheet  when the consolidated company becomes a 

party for the provision o f the inst rument  contract .  

  For the Init ia l recognit ion o f financial assets and financially  

liabilit ies,  if they are not measured at  fair  value through profit  or loss,  

they shall be measured at  the direct ly at tr ibutable t ransact ion cost  of 

the acqu ired or issued financia l asset  or financial liabilit y accrued at  

fair value.  Transact ion cost  that  can be direct ly at t ributable to  the 

acquired or issued financia l asset  or financial liabilit y measured at  fair  

value through pro fit  or loss shall be immediately recognized as pro fit  

or loss.  

 a. Financial asset 

  The regular way purchase or sale  of financial asset  uses 

recognit ion and derecognit ion on t rade date account ing.  

 (1) Type of measurement 

  The financial assets possessed by the conso lidate 

company inc lude financial assets measured at  fair value 

through profit  or loss,  financial assets measured at  a mort ized 

cost , and investments in equity inst ruments measured at fair  

value through other comprehensive income.  

A.  Financia l assets measured at  fair value through pro fit  or  

lo ss 

  Financial assets measured at  fair value through profit  

or loss include financia l assets with mandatory 

measurement  at  fair value through pro fit  or loss.  F inancia l 

assets with mandatory measurement  at  fair value through 

profit  or loss inc lude investments in equity inst ruments 

that  are not  specified by the conso lidated company to 

measure at  fair value through other comprehensive income 

as we ll as der ivat ive inst ruments and fund beneficiar y 

cert ificate that  cannot be classified as measured at  

amort ized cost  or measure at  fair value through  other 

comprehensive income.  
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  Financial assets measured at  fair value through profit  

or loss recognize the dividend and int erest  generated from 

the measurement  at fair value as other revenue and interest  

revenue before evaluat ing the profit  or loss genera ted to 

recognize it  in other profit  and loss.  The method used to 

determine fair value can be referred to Note 28.  

B. Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

  I f the financia l asset  invested by the conso lidated 

company meets both of the fo llowing condit ions,  it  shall be 

classified as financial assets measured at  amort ized cost : 

(a) it is possessed under a certain operating mode, and the purpose of 

the mode is to collect contractual cash flows through the financial 

asset possessed; and  

(b)cash flows generated on specific date due to the contract, and the 

cash flows are specifically to pay for the interests of principal and 

outstanding principal. 

  After the init ial recognit ion o f the financial asset  

measured at  amort ized cost  (including  cash and cash 

equivalent s as well as accounts receivable and other  

receivables measured at  amort ized cost),  it  shall be 

measured by the total book value determined  via effect ive 

int erest  method deduct ing amort ized cost of any 

impair ment  loss.  Any pro fit  or loss caused by foreign 

currency exchange shall be recognized as profit  or loss.  

  Except  the fo llowing two situat ion, interest  revenue 

shall be calculated by effect ive int erest  rate  mult iplying 

total book value of the financia l asset :  

(a) The interest revenue of the purchased or originated credit-impaired  

financial asset is calculated by the effective interest rate after credit 

adjustment multiplying the amortized cost of the financial asset. 

(b)Financial asset without purchased or originated credit impairment 

but becomes credit impairment in the future shall calculate the 

interest revenue by the effective interest rate for the next reporting 



- 30 - 

period from the credit impairment multiplying the amortized cost 

of the financial asset. 

  Cred it - impaired financial asset  refers to  the issuer or 

debtor suffer ing cr it ical financia l difficulty or vio lat ing 

contract ,  and debtors are likely to claim bankruptcy or 

other financia l reorganizat ion, or the act ive market  for the 

financial asset  disappears due to financia l difficulty.  

  Cash equiva lents include t ime deposit s that  are with 

high liquidity,  can be converted momentar ily at  any t ime,  

and with very small r isk o f value change  and reverse 

repurchase bond. They are used to  sat isfy short -t ime cash 

commit ment .  

C. Investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 

  Conso lidated company can make an irrevocable 

cho ice for init ial recognit ion to  appoint  the investment  

recognized as non-ho lding for t rading and non-business 

acquis it ion or merger or the investment  in equity 

inst rument  containing considerat ion to  be measured at  fair  

value through other comprehensive income.  

  After investments in equ ity inst ruments measured at  

fair value through other comprehensive income  are 

measured at  fair value,  the change o f fair value afterwards 

shall be recognized in other comprehensive as well as 

accumulated in other equity.  When the investment  is  

disposed,  the accumulated income will be direct ly 

t ransferred to  retained earnings ins tead of being 

re-classified to  profit  or loss.  

  The divided of the investment  in equity inst rument  

measured at  fair value through other  comprehensive 

income shall be recognized as pro fit  or loss when the 

conso lidated company’s r ight  of co llect ion is confirmed 

unless the dividend obviously represents  the recovery o f 

part  of investment  cost.  
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 (2) Impairment  o f financia l asset  

  The conso lidated company shall evaluate the impairment  

lo ss o f t he financial asset  ( including accounts receivable) at  

amort ized cost  according to  expected credit  loss evaluat ion 

on each date of balance sheet .  

  Accounts receivable shall be recognized as allowance 

for loss according to  the expected credit  loss dur ing the 

durat ion. Other financial assets shall be evaluated whether  

the credit  r isk is significant ly increased after init ia l 

recognit ion first .  If there is no significant  increase,  it  shal l 

be recognized in a llowance for loss based on 12-month 

expected credit  loss.  If the r isk has been significant ly 

increased, it  shall be recognized in allowance for loss based 

on the expected credit  loss dur ing the durat ion.  

  Expected credit  lo ss is the we ighted average credit  lo ss 

that  uses the risk of contract  vio lat ion as the weight  for  

evaluat ion. The 12-month expected credit  lo ss is t he expected 

credit  loss on the financia l inst rument  generated fro m 

potent ial mat ters of contract  vio lat ion within 12 months after  

report  date.  The expected credit  loss dur ing durat ion refers to 

the expected credit  lo ss on the financial inst rument  generated 

from potent ial mat ters of contract  violat ion dur ing the 

durat ion.  

  For the purpose of internal credit  r isk management ,  the 

conso lidated company will determine contract  vio lat ion on 

financial assets under the fo llowing situat ions without  

consider ing the co llateral held.  

A. An internal or external informat ion reveals the debtor wil l 

never set t le the debt .  

B. I f overdue, reasonable and provable info rmat ion shall be 

presented to  support  the contract  vio lat ion basis o f deferral 

will be more appropr iate.  

  The impairment  loss for all financial assets shall be 

adjusted to the book value through the allowance account .  
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 (3) Derecognition of financial asset 

  Conso lidated company shall only derecognize the 

financial asset  when the contractual r ights on the cash flows 

from the financia l asset  is inva lid,  or the financial asset  has 

been t ransferred and almost  all r isks and rewards of the asset  

ownership have been t ransferred to  another enterpr ise.  

  When derecogniz ing who le financial asset  measured at  

amort ized cost ,  the difference between its book value and 

considerat ion received shall be recognized as profit  or loss.  

When derecognizing who le investment  in equity inst rument  

measured at  fair value through other comprehensive income,  

the accumulated income will be direct ly t ransferred to 

retained earnings instead o f being reclassified as pro fit  or 

lo ss.  

 b.  Financial liability 

 (1) Subsequent measurement 

  Except  the fo llowing sit uat ions,  all financial liabilit ies 

shall be measured at  amort ized cost  with effect ive interest  

method.  

Financia l liabilit ies measured at  fair value through profit  or 

lo ss  

  Financial liabilit ies measured at  fair value through 

profit  or loss is held for t rading.  

  Financial liabilit ies held for t rading are measured at  fair  

value,  and relevant  gains or losses shall be recognized in 

other gains and losses.  

  Method of determining fair value can be referred to Note 

28.  

 (2) Derecognition of financial liability 

  When derecogniz ing financial liabilit y,  the difference 

between its book value and the considerat ion paid ( including 

any non-cash asset  t ransferred or liabilit y undertaken) shal l 

be recognized as profit  or loss.  

 c. Der ivat ive inst rument  
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  Derivat ive inst ruments signed by the conso lidated company 

are forward exchange contract s to manage interest  rate and 

exchange rate r isks for the conso lidated company.  

  When signing contract  for financial inst ruct ion, the financia l 

inst rument  is init ially recognized with fair value before being 

re-measured at  fair value on the date of balance sheet .  The profit  

or loss generated at  the subsequent  measurement  will be direct ly 

listed to profit  or loss.  However,  the po int  of t ime for der ivat ive 

inst ruments that  are appointed as effect ive hedging inst ruments to  

be recognized in pro fit  or loss will be based on the nature of 

hedging relat ionship .  When the fa ir value o f the der ivat ive 

inst rument  is a posit ive value,  it  shall be listed as a financia l asset .  

When the fa ir value is  a negat ive value,  it  shall be listed as a  

financial liabilit y.  

  I f the der ivat ive inst rument  is embedded to the asset  master  

contract  within the scope of “financia l ins t rument” in IFRS 9, the 

classificat ion of the financia l asset  will be determined based on 

the who le contract .  If the der ivat ive inst rument  is embedded to the 

asset  mater contract  within non-IFRS 9 scope (such as embedded 

to financial liabilit y mater contract), the embedded der ivat ive 

inst rument  meets the definit ion o f der ivat ive inst rument ,  it s r isk 

and feature are not  closed related to  the r isk and feature of the 

master contract , and the hybr id contract  is not  measured at  fair  

value through pro fit  and loss,  the der ivat ive inst rument  shall be 

regarded as independent  der ivat ive inst rument .  

13) Revenue recognit ion 

  After ident ifying contract performance obligat ion from the 

contract  with customer,  the conso lidated company sha ll amort ize the 

t ransact ion pr ice to each obligat ion o f contract performance and 

recognize it  as revenue when the obligat ion is sat isfied.  

Merchandise sales revenue  

  The merchand ise sales revenue is from manufactur ing and selling 

low dens ity po lyethylene, medium density po lyethylene, and e thylene 

vinyl acetate.  Due to customers ho ld the rights of pr ice setup and 
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r ight -of-use on the above products as well as are responsible for  

re-selling and undertake the r isk o f product  obso lescence when the 

products are shipped out  or delivered to  the appo inted locat ion by 

customers,  the conso lidated company shall recog nize them as revenue 

and accounts receivable at  the po int  of t ime.  

14) Lease 

  The conso lidated company shall evaluate whether the contract  is  

(or includes) lease on the date when the contract  is established.  

 (1) The conso lidated company is the lessor  

  When the provis ion o f lease contract  specifies almost  all the 

r isks and rewards under the ownership o f the asset  are t ransferred 

to  the lessee,  it  shall be classified as financial lease.  All the other  

leases shall be c lassified as operat ing lease.  

  When the conso lidated company subleases the r ight -of-use 

asset ,  the r ight -of-use asset  (not  under lying asset) shall be used to  

determine the classificat ion o f sublease.  However,  if the main 

lease is the short -term lease that  is applicable by the conso lidated 

company to recognize as exempt ion, the classificat ion o f the 

sublease will be operat ing lease.  

  Under the operat ing lease,  the lease payment  after deduct ion 

of lease incent ives shall be recognized as revenue in the relevant  

lease durat ion based on linear basis.  The init ial direct  cost  for 

acquir ing the operat ing lease shall be added to the book va l ue o f 

the under lying asset  and be recognized as expense dur ing the lease 

durat ion based on linear bas is.  

 (2) The conso lidated company is the lessee  

  The lease payment s from the lease of low -value under lying 

asset  and short -term lease that  are applicable for recognit ion as 

exempt ions shall be recognized as expense dur ing the lease 

durat ion on linear basis.  Other leases shall be recognized as 

r ight -of-use assets and lease liabilit ies from the start ing date of 

the lease.  

  Right-of-use assets shall be init ia lly measured by cost  

( including original measurement  amount  of lease liabilit y,  lease 



- 35 - 

payment  after deduct ing lease incent ives received paid before the 

start ing day o f the lease,  original direct  cost , and est imated cost  

for recover ing the under lying asset) .  The subsequent  measurement  

shall be measured at  the amount  of cost  deduct ing accumulated 

depreciat ion and accumulated impairment  loss.  Besides,  the 

remeasurement  of the lease liabilit y shall be adjusted. Except  

conforming with the definit ion o f investment  property,  the 

r ight -of-use asset  sha ll be presented in the conso lidated balance 

sheet  separately.  The recognit ion and measurement  of the r ight -o f 

-use property that  complies with the definit ion of investment  

property can be referred to  (9) Account ing policy for investment  

property.  

  Right -of-use assets shall be recognized as the depreciat ion on 

linear basis from the lease start ing date to  the expirat ion o f 

service life or to  the date of lease expirat ion, whichever is  ear lier.  

  Lease liabilit ies are measured init ially at  the present  value o f 

the lease payment .  I f the int erest  rate implic it  in a lease  is easy to  

confirm, use the interest  rate to discount  the lease payment .  If it  is  

not  easy to  confirm, use lessee 's incremental borrowing rate o f 

int erest .  

  Subsequent ly,  the lease liabilit y shall be measured at  

amort ized cost  using effect ive interest  method. The interest  

expense shall be amort ized dur ing the lease durat ion. The lease 

liabilit y shall be presented in t he conso lidated balance sheet  

separately.  

15) Employee benefit  

 a. Short-term employee benefit 

  Liabilit ies related to  short -term employee benefit  are 

measured at  expected non-discounted amount  payment  in 

exchanging service from emplo yees.  

 b.  Benefit after retirement 

  Pension o f the defined contr ibut ion ret irement  plan shall be 

recognized as expense by the contr ibuted pension amount  dur ing 

the per iod that  the employee provides service.  
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  Defined benefit  cost  ( includ ing service cost ,  net  interest ,  and 

remeasurement) for the defined benefit  pension plan  shall be 

calculated according to  the pro jected unit  credit  method. The 

service cost  and net  defined benefit  liabilit y (asset) shall be 

recognized as employee benefit  expense when it  happens.  

Remeasurement  ( including actuar ial gains and losses  and return on 

plan assets after deduct ing interest ) shall be recognized as other  

comprehensive loss when happens as we ll as be listed as retained 

earnings.  It  will not  be re-class ified to  profit  or loss in the 

subsequent  per iod.  

  Net defined benefit  liabilit y (asset ) is appropr iat ion 

defic iency (surplus) o f the defined benefit  pension plan.  Net  

defined benefit  asset  must  not be over the present  value of 

refunded contr ibut ion from the plan or reduct ion in the future 

contr ibut ion.  

16) Income tax 

  Income tax expense is the sum of current  income tax and deferred 

income tax.  

 a. Current income tax 

  The conso lidated company determines the current  income 

based on the regulat ions established by the competent  authority o f 

income tax declarat ion and then calcu lates income tax payable 

accordingly.  

  Income tax on undist r ibuted earnings calculated according to  

the provis ion o f Income Tax Act ,  R.O.C. will be recognized 

annually based on the reso lut ion o f Shareho lder ’s Meet ing.  

  The adjustment  from the income tax payable in t he previous 

year sha ll be listed to current  income tax.  

 b.  Deferred income tax 

  Deferred income tax is calculated by the temporary difference 

between amounts of asset  showing in t he account  book & liabilit y 

book value and tax base used to  calculate income tax.  

  Deferred income tax liabilit y is generally recognized by al l 

taxable temporary difference while defer red income tax asset  is  
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recognized when there might  be income tax to deduct  temporar y 

difference.  

  Taxable temporar y difference related to  the invested 

subsidiar ies and associates shall be recognized as deferred income 

tax liabilit y.  However,  the temporary difference under the 

conso lidated company’s contro l for the t ime spot  of temporar y 

difference reversal and it  is l ike ly not  able to be reversed in the 

feasible future can be excluded. The deduct ible temporar y 

difference related to  this kind of investment  can only be 

recognized as deferred income tax asset  when it  is  likely to  have 

sufficient  taxable income to realize temporary difference and is 

within the scope of feasible future expected reversal.  

  The book value o f deferred income tax asset  shall be 

reviewed on each date of balance sheet .  The book value for all o f 

or part of the assets that  are likely no longer to  have sufficient  

taxable income for recovery shall be adjusted and reduced the 

amount .  Assets that  are init ially recognized as deferred income tax 

assets shall be reviewed on each date o f balance sheet .  For those 

assets that  are likely to generate taxable in come to recover all or  

part  of assets,  the book value shall be adjusted and increased.  

  Deferred income tax asset  and liabilit y are measured at  the 

current  tax rate when the liabilit y is expected to  be set t led or the 

asset  is expected to  be realized. The tax rate is based on enacted or 

substant ively enacted tax rate and tax law on the date of balance 

sheet .  The measurement  of deferred income tax liabilit y and asset  

reflects the tax result  generated from the methods used for the 

expected recovery or sett lement  of asset  and liabilit y book value 

by the conso lidated company on the date of balanc e sheet . 

 c. Current and deferred income tax 

  Current  and deferred income tax will be recognized as profit  

or loss.  However,  current  and deferred income recognized as other  

comprehensive income or related to the items direct ly added to 

equity shall be recognized as other comprehensive income or 

direct ly added to equity separately.  
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5.  Main sources of cr it ical account ing judgement ,  est imates,  and assumpt ion 

uncertainty 

  When using account ing po licy, the management  level at  the 

conso lidated company must  make relevant  adjustment ,  est imate and 

assumpt ions on the informat ion that  is not  easy to  be obtained further  

informat ion from other sources based on the exper ience in the past  and 

other relevant  factors.  The actual result s might  be different  from the 

est imates.  

  The conso lidated company inc ludes the economic impact  caused by 

the COVID-19 pandemic into the considerat ion o f cr it ica l account ing 

est imates,  and the management  level will cont inue reviewing the 

est imates and bas ic assumpt ions.  I f t he revised est imate only affects the 

current  per iod, it  shall be recognized in  the per iod o f revis ion. I f the 

revised account ing est imate will affect  current  and future per iods,  it  shal l 

be recognized in the current  and future per iods.  

Main source o f est imate and assumpt ions uncertainty 

1)  Est imate impairment  o f financia l asset  

  The est imate impairment  of accounts receivable is based on the 

assumpt ions done by the conso lidated company on default  rate and 

expected loss rate.  The conso lidated company takes  histor ica l 

exper ience, current  market  situat ion, and proact ive informat ion into  

considerat ion to propose assumpt ions and select  input  value for  

impair ment  evaluat ion. The important  assumpt ions and input  value 

used can be referred to  Note 10. If the actual cash flow in the future is  

less than the expectat ion, significant  imp airment  lo ss might  be 

generated.  

2)  Impairment  o f inventory 

  Net realizable value of inventory is est imated by the balance o f 

expected selling pr ice in the normal operat ing process deduct ing the 

est imated cost  required unt il t he comple t ion and the est imated cost  

needed for the complet ion of sales.  The est imate is eva luated according 

to  the current  market  situat ion and historical selling exper ience o f 

similar products.  The change o f market  situat ion might  significant ly 

affect  the result  of est imate.  
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3)  Est imate o f damage and compensat ion expenses for the accident  of 

gas exp losion at  the associate  

  The associate,  China General Terminal & Distr ibut ion Corporat ion ,  

recognizes liabilit y preparat ion due to  the civil damage compensat ion 

for the accident  of gas explosion. The management  author ity considers 

the progress of relevant  civil and cr iminal laws uit  and set t lement  as 

well as take reference of lega l advice to est imate the reserve for the 

liabilit y.  However,  the actual result  might  have difference with the 

current  est imate.  

6.  Cash and cash equ ivalents  

 

 

December 31
st
, 

2020  

December 31
st
, 

2019 

Cash on hand and petty cash    $ 357     $ 342  

Checking accounts and demand 

deposits 

 

   169,091 

 

   115,043 

Cash equivalents     

  Time deposits     436,196      812,231  

  Reverse repurchase 

agreements collateralized 

by bonds 

 

   - 

 

   11,000 

    $ 605,644     $ 938,616  

 

  At the end o f report ing per iod, the market  rate intervals for bank 

deposits and reverse repurchase agreeme nts collateralized by bonds were  

as below:  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Time deposits  0.07%~1.90%  0.56%~2.58% 

Reverse repurchase agreements 

collateralized by bonds 

 

- 

 

0.60% 

 

7.  Financia l inst rument  measured at  fair value through profit  or loss- current  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Financial asset- current     

Financial assets mandatorily 

classified as at FVTPL 

derivative financial assets (not 

under hedge accounting) 

 

 

 

 

    －Foreign exchange 

forward contracts 

 

  $ -  

 

  $ 94  

 

 

 

  

(cont inued)  
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 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

  Non-derivative financial 

assets 

 

 

 

 

    －Domestic listed 

shares 

 

   248,175  

 

   167,154  

    －Mutual funds      837,676     2,479,130 

    Subtotal     1,085,851      2,646,284  

    $ 1,085,851     $ 2,646,378  

     

Financial liabilities- current     

Financial liabilities held for 

trading derivative financial 

liabilities (not under hedge 

accounting) 

 

 

 

 

       

    －Foreign  exchange 

forward contracts 

 

  $ 3,912  

 

  $ -  

  The net  profit  generated from financial assets and liabilit ies 

measured at  fair value through pro fit  or loss at  the conso lidated company 

in 2020 and in 2019 were $140,504  thousand and $60,500 thousand 

respect ively.  

  At the end of the report ing per iod, o utstanding foreign exchange 

forward contracts not  under hedge account ing were  as below:  

December 31
st

,  2020 

  Currency  Validity  
Contract amount (thousand 

dollars) 

Forward exchange 

sold 

 Exchange RMB 

into NTD 

 From January 5
th
, 

2021 to April 1
st
, 2021 

 RMB 77,660/NTD 333,460 

 

December 31
st

,  2019 

  Currency  Validity  

Contract amount (thousand 

dollars) 

Forward exchange 
sold 

 Exchange UDS 
into NTD 

 From January 13
th
, 

2020 to February 5
th
, 

2020 

 USD 1,730/NTD 52,503 

Forward exchange 
sold 

 Exchange RMB 
into NTD 

 From January 6
th
, 

2020 to March 30
th
, 

2020 

 RMB 72,000/NTD 309,065 

 

  The conso lidated company engages with forward exchange 

t ransact ion is for the purpose of avo iding  risks on foreign currency asset  

and liabilit y caused by exchange rate fluctuat io n. The forward exchange 

contract  held by the conso lidated company is not  applicable to hedge 
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account ing due to  the failure o f meet ing the condit ions o f effect ive 

hedging.  

8.  Financia l asset  measured at  fair value through other comprehensive income  

Investments in equity inst rument  measured at  fair value through other 

comprehensive income  

  

December 31st, 
2020 

 December 31st, 
2019 

Current  

 

 

 Domestic investment     

  Listed (over the counter) 

stock 

 

  $ 86,368 

 

  $ 73,352 

     

Non-current     

Domestic investment     

  Listed (over the counter) 

stock 

 

  $ 2,977,139  

 

  $ 2,059,522  

  Pre-listed (over the counter) 

stock 

 

   275,798 

 

   237,776 

    Subtotal     3,252,937      2,297,298  

Overseas investments     

  Listed (over the counter) 

stock 

 

   17,480  

 

   4,946  

  Pre-listed (over the counter) 

common stock 

 

   10  

 

   15  

  Pre-listed (over the counter) 

preferred stock 

 

   57,117 

 

   55,620 

    Subtotal     74,607      60,581  

    $ 3,327,544     $ 2,357,879  

 

  The conso lidated company invests domest ic and overseas common 

stock and preferred stock based on the purpose of medium - and long-term 

st rategies and expects to  gain pro fit s through long -term investment .  The 

management  level at  the conso lidated company believes list ing the 

short -term fair value fluctuat ion of the investment  into profit  or loss wil l 

be inconsistent  with the long-t ime investment  plan ment ioned above.  

Therefore,  they chose to  designat e the investment  as measurement  at fair  

value through other comprehensive income.  

  In August  2020, the conso lidated company adjusted the investment  

posit ion for risk diversificat ion. They sold the common stock at United 

Renewable Energy Co.,  Ltd.  possessed at  fair value,  and the relevant  

equity- unrealized loss o f $19,351  thousand from the financia l assets 
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measured at  fair value through other comprehensive income - was 

t ransferred to  retained earnings.  

  The investee companies,  KHL 1A Venture Capital Corp. and Riselink 

Venture Capital Corp.,  handled capital reduct ion and refund o f shares  in  

August  & December 2020 and September 2020 respect ively.  The 

conso lidated company was refunded $34,135 thousand in total according 

to  shareho lding rat io .  

  The conso lidated company adjusted investment  posit ions for r isk 

diversificat ion in March, May, and November 2019. Based on fair value,  

the conso lidated company so ld part  of common stock in CTCI Corporat ion,  

preferred stock in Silicon Techno logy Investment  (Cayman) Corp. ,  and 

common stock in United Renewable Energy Co.,  Ltd.  The relevant  other  

equity- unrealized profit  o f $1,573 thousand and $29,295 thousand & 

unrealized loss o f $1,088 thousand from the financia l assets measured at  

fair value through other comprehensive  income - was t ransferred into 

retained earnings.  

  The investee companies,  Harbinger Venture Capital Corp. ,  Budworth 

Investment  Ltd. ,  KHL 1A Venture Cap it al Corp. and Riselink Venture 

Capita l Corp.,  handled capital reduct ion and refund o f shares in January,  

May, and September 2019, respect ively.  The cons o lidated company was 

refunded $24,690 thousand in total according to  the shareho lding rat io .  

9.  Financia l asset  measured at  amort ized cost  

  

December 31
st
, 

2020  

December 31
st
 

2019 

Non-current     

Restricted bank deposit    $ 42,648    $ - 

 

  The rest r icted bank deposit  is the surplus repatr iat ion from Asia 

Polymer Corporat ion. It  has been approved by Minist ry o f Economic  

Affairs for the applicabilit y o f our company applying o ffshore fund to be  

sent  back to the investment  industry.  

10.   Accounts receivable  
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 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Accounts receivable     

Measurement at amortized cost     

  Total book value    $ 547,372     $ 593,523  

  Reduction: allowance for loss   (  2,000 )   (  2,000 ) 

    $ 545,372     $ 591,523  

Accounts receivable-  related 

parties (Note 29) 

 

  $ 197,413  

 

  $ 156,784  

 

Accounts receivable  

Accounts receivable measured at  amort ized cost  

  The average credit  per iod o f product  sales in the conso lidated 

company is around 15 to 90 days .  Due to the short credit  per io d, the 

accounts receivable bear no interest .  

  In order to  reduce credit  r isk,  the management  level at  the 

conso lidated company assigns a dedicated team in charge o f the decis io n 

of credit  per iod, credit  approval,  and other monitor ing procedures to  

ensure proper act ion has been taken towards the co llect ion o f overdue 

receivables.  In addit ion, the conso lidated company will ver ify t he 

recoverable amount  of each account  receivable on the date of balance 

sheet  to  make sure the unrecoverable receivables have bee n recognized 

proper ly as impairment  loss.  In view of the above, the management  leve l 

at  the conso lidated company believes the credit  r isk has been 

significant ly reduced.  

  The conso lidated company recognizes the allowance for loss on 

accounts receivable based on the expected credit  lo ss.  The expected credit  

lo ss for the durat ion is calculated with provision matr ix,  which considers 

customers’ contract  vio lat ion records in t he past ,  current  financial status,  

and economic sit uat ion in the industry.  

  The allowance for loss prepared by the conso lidated company on the 

accounts receivable according to  provision matr ix is as be low:  



- 44 - 

December 31
st

,  2020 

  Not overdue  1～60 days  61～90 days  Total 

Total book value    $ 744,785    $ -    $ -    $ 744,785 

Allowance for loss 

(expected credit loss for 
the duration) 

 

 (  2,000 )     -     -   (  2,000 ) 

Cost after amortization    $ 742,785    $ -    $ -    $ 742,785 

 

December 31
st

,  2019 

  Not overdue  1～60 days  61～90 days  Total 

Total book value    $ 750,307    $ -    $ -    $ 750,307 

Allowance for loss 
(expected credit loss for 

the duration) 

 

 (  2,000 )     -     -   (  2,000 ) 

Cost after amortization    $ 748,307    $ -    $ -    $ 748,307 

 

  Number o f overdue days are used as basis for analys is above.  

  Informat ion o f changes in the allowance for loss on accounts 

receivable:                              

  2020  2019 

Opening balance    $ 2,000     $ 2,000  

Adding: Re-classification in the 

year 

 

   - 

 

   - 

Closing balance    $ 2,000     $ 2,000  

 

11. Inventory 

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Finished products    $ 175,532     $ 300,476  

Semi-products     19,347      22,665  

Raw materials     82,790      18,826  

Commodities     34,455     44,703 

    $ 312,124     $ 386,670  

 

  Costs of goods sold related to inventory in 2020 and 2019 were 

$4,574,394 thousand and $5,755,709 thousand respect ively.  The costs o f 

goods so ld in 2020 and 2019 include gains on inventory recovery, and 

they were $408 thousand and $4,039 thousand respect ively.  The recover y 

of inventory net  realizable value was caused by the r ise of selling pr ice o f 

inventory in the market .  

12. Subsidiar ies  

Subsidiar ies inc luded in the conso lidated financial statement  
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  Main ent it ies inc luded in the preparat ion o f the conso lid ated 

financial statement  are as below:  

      Shareholding percentage   

Name of 
investment 
company 

 

Name of subsidiary 

 

Business nature 

 December 
31st, 2020 

 

 December 
31st, 2019 

 

 

Note 

Our company  APC Investment Corp. Ltd. 
(hereinafter referred to as 
APC Investment) 

 Investment 
business 

 100.00%  100.00%  1 

Our company  APC (BVI) Holding Co., Ltd. 
(hereinafter referred to as 
APC (BVI) 

 Re-investment 
business 

 100.00%  100.00%  1 

Our company  USI International Corp. 
(hereinafter referred to as 
USIIC) 

 Re-investment 
business 

 70.00%  70.00%  1 

APC（BVI）  USI International Corp. 
(hereinafter referred to as 
USIIC) 

 Re-investment 
business 

 30.00%  30.00%  1 

APC（BVI）  USI Trading (Shanghai) Co., 
Ltd. (hereinafter referred to 
as USITA) 

 Selling chemical 
products and 
equipment 

 100.00%  100.00%  1 

 

Remark:  

 1. APC Investment Corporation, APC (BVI),  USIIC and USITA are not  

significant  subsidiar ies; their financia l statements have been a udit ed 

by cert ified accountants.  

  Subsidiary,  USI Internat ional Corp. ,  dealt  with cap ital reduct ion and 

refund o f shares in November 2020. The conso lidated company was 

refunded $20,020 thousand according to  the shareho lding rat io .  

  In response to  the demand of business operat ion, the Board of 

Directors in the company made a reso lut ion on August  12nd, 2020 to 

establish a sales company in Mainland China through the jo int  venture of 

the subsidiary,  APC(BVI),  and the subsidiary o f USI Corporat ion,  

Swanlake Traders Ltd.  The capital is est imated to  be RMB 300,000 

thousand, and our company expects to  hold 30% of shares.  

13.  Investment  using equity method  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Associate with significance     
Ever Conquest Global Ltd.    $ 5,066,945    $ 4,265,335 

Individual non-significant associate     
Listed (over the counter) company     
China General Plastics Corporation 

(CGPC) 
 

   782,997     665,776 
ACME Electronics Corporation 

(ACME) 
 

   56,300     54,352  
    (cont inued)  
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 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 
Non-listed (over the counter) company     
China General Terminal & Distribution 

Corporation  
(CGTD) 

 

   315,711     257,584  
ACME Electronics (Cayman) Corp.

（ACME (Cayman)） 
 

   200,825     199,043  
Swanson Plastics Corporation 

 (SPC) 
 

   206,857     198,065  
Taiwan United Venture Capital Corp. 

(TUVC) 
 

   21,472     20,142  
Thintec Materials Corporation  

(TMC) 
 

   -     4,399  
USI Optronics Corporation  

(USIO) 
 

   12,579     18,313  
Swanson Technologies Corporation 

(Swanson Technologies)  
 

 (  16,165 )   (  14,049 ) 
     6,647,521      5,668,960  
Adding: Long-term investment credit 

balance transferred to be recognized 
as liability 

 

   16,165     14,049 
    $ 6,663,686     $ 5,683,009  

 

1) Mater ial associates 

 

 

 

 

 

 Ratios of shareholding 

and voting right 

Name of the company 

 

Nature of business 

 Main business 

venue 

 December 

31st, 2020 

 December 

31st, 2019 

Ever Conquest Global Ltd.  Re-investment  British Virgin 

Islands 

 40.87%  36.89% 

 

  The conso lidated company uses equity method to measure above 

associate.  

  The fo llowing summarized financial informat ion was prepared 

based on IFRSs conso lidated financia l statement  from each associa te 

and has reflected the adjustment  under equity method.  

Ever Conquest  Global Ltd.  

  December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Non-current assets    $ 12,398,597    $ 11,563,685 

Equity    $ 12,398,597     $ 11,563,685  

Shareholding ratio by our 

company 

    40.87%     36.89% 

     

Equity entitled by our company    $ 5,066,945     $ 4,265,335  

     

Book value of investment    $ 5,066,945     $ 4,265,335  
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  There was no significant  business revenue generated by Ever  

Conquest  Global Ltd. in 2020 and 2019.  

  2020  2019 

Proportion entitled by the 

consolidated company 

 

 

 

 

  Net profit of the year   ( $ 44,058 )   ( $ 10,228 ) 

  Other comprehensive 

income 

 

   53,761  

 

 (  174,072 ) 

  Total comprehensive 

(loss)  

 

  $ 9,703  

 

 ( $ 184,300 ) 

 

2)  Summarized information of individual non-significant associate  

 

  2020  2019 

Proportion entitled by the 

consolidated company 

 

   

  Net profit of the year from 

continuing operations 

 

  $ 169,496     $ 63,345  

  Other comprehensive 

income 

 

   38,537    (  4,464 ) 

  Total comprehensive 

income  

 

  $ 208,033     $ 58,881  

 

  The percentage o f ownership interest  and vot ing r ight  possessed 

by the conso lidated company in each associate on the date of balance 

sheet  is as below:  

Name of the company 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

CGPC  8.07%  8.07% 

ACME Corporation  4.34%  4.34% 

CGTD  33.33%  33.33% 

ACME (Cayman)  16.64%  16.64% 

SPC  7.95%  7.95% 

TUVC  8.33%  8.33% 

TMC  -  30.42% 

Swanson Technologies Corp.  15.00%  15.00% 

USIO  9.20%  9.20% 

 

  Please refer to the attached Table 6 “Informat ion of Investee 

Company Informat ion and Locat ion” and Table 7 “China Investment” 

for the business nature,  main business venue, and country of company 

regist rat ion related to  the above associates.  
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  Due to Sinter Enterpr ise engaged with no real product ion and 

sales business in the past  few years,  the Board of Directors in the 

company carr ied out the reso lut ion on Apr il 12nd, 2019 to start dealing 

with disso lut ion and liquidat ion on May 25
th

,  2019 (date of disso lut ion).  

The procedures of disso lut ion and liquidat ion have been completed on 

July 22
n d

,  2020. Loss on disposal o f the investment  of $527 thousand 

was recognized.  

  Although the shareho lding rat io  by the conso lidated company in 

the investee companies- CGPC, ACME Corporat ion, ACME（Cayman）,  

SPC, TUVC,  Swanson Techno logies Corporat ion and USIO is less than 

20%, the measurement  was carr ied out  with equit y method due to the 

company’s significant  influence.  

  Our company or igina lly signed a jo int  venture contract with USI  

Corporat ion on Apr il 17
t h

,  2014 for Gulei Investment .  However,  the 

jo int  venture contract was entered and signed again on September 30
t h

,  

2016 due to  the increase of fund demand for the investment .  Our  

company and USI Corporat ion established Ever Conquest  Global Ltd.  

under jo int  venture to  invest  the company through a third area.  Unt i l 

December 31
st

,  2020, our company and USI Corporat ion have invested 

Ever Conquest  Global Ltd.  in USD 170,475 thousand (around NTD 

5,255,588 thousand) and USD 246,670 thousand (around NTD 

7,645,980 thousand) respect ively.  Please refer to Note 30 for relevant  

explanat ion.  

  Market  pr ice for the equit y investment  on listed (over the counter)  

company using equity method calcu lated with  the stock closing pr ice 

on the date of balance sheet  is as below:  

Name of the company 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

CGPC    $ 1,136,432     $ 884,565  

ACME     $ 150,087     $ 97,279  
 

 

  For the share o f profit  or loss and other comprehensive income at  

associates under equity method, it  was recognized according to  the 

financial statement  ver ified by cert ified accounts from the sa me per iod 

at  each associate except  the share at  ACME in 2020 was calculated 
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based on the financia l statement  that was audit ed by the account .  

However,  the management  level at  the conso lidated company believes 

that  ACME financial statement  in 2020 that  was not audited by the 

account  will not  cause mater ial impact .  

14.   Property,  plant  and equipment  

 

 

 Self-owned 

land 

 Buildings and 

improvements 

 Machinery and 

equipment 

 Other 

equipment 

 Unfinished 

construction 

 

Total 

Cost             

Balance on January 1
st
, 

2019 

 

  $ 228,229 

 

  $ 774,313 

 

  $ 6,295,372 

 

  $ 98,825 

 

  $ 126,879 

 

  $ 7,523,618 

Additions     -     -     27,797     1,102     39,625     68,524 

Disposal     -     -   (  57,756 )   (  983 )     -   (  58,739 ) 

Internal transfer     -     3,922     88,484     893   (  93,299 )     - 

Net exchange difference     -     -     41   (  140 )     -   (  99 ) 

Balance on December 

31
st
, 2019 

 

  $ 228,229 

 

  $ 778,235 

 

  $ 6,353,938 

 

  $ 99,697 

 

  $ 73,205 

 

  $ 7,533,304 

             

Accumulated 

depreciation and 

impairment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Balance on January 1
st
, 

2019 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 259,702 

 

  $ 3,679,874 

 

  $ 81,350 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 4,020,926 

Depreciation expenses     -     22,296     266,346     5,082     -     293,724 

Disposal     -     -   (  57,554 )   (  983 )     -   (  58,537 ) 

Net exchange difference     -     -     37   (  79 )     -   (  42 ) 

Balance on December 

31
st
, 2019 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 281,998 

 

  $ 3,888,703 

 

  $ 85,370 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 4,256,071 

             

Net amount on 

December 31st, 2019 

 

  $ 228,229 

 

  $ 496,237 

 

  $ 2,465,235 

 

  $ 14,327 

 

  $ 73,205 

 

  $ 3,277,233 

             

Cost             

Balance on January 1
st
, 

2020 

 

  $ 228,229 

 

  $ 778,235 

 

  $ 6,353,938 

 

  $ 99,697 

 

  $ 73,205 

 

  $ 7,533,304 

Additions     -     -     26,163     -     258,664     284,827 

Disposal     -     -   (  42,008 )   (  53 )     -   (  42,061 ) 

Internal transfer     -     580     87,134     823   (  88,537 )     - 

Net exchange difference     -     -     -   (  74 )     -   (  74 ) 

Balance on December 

31
st
, 2020 

 

  $ 228,229 

 

  $ 778,815 

 

  $ 6,425,227 

 

  $ 100,393 

 

  $ 243,332 

 

  $ 7,775,996 

             

Accumulated 

depreciation and 

impairment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Balance on January 1
st
, 

2020 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 281,998 

 

  $ 3,888,703 

 

  $ 85,370 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 4,256,071 

Depreciation expenses     -     21,537     278,282     4,574     -     304,393 

Disposal     -     -   (  42,008 )   (  53 )     -   (  42,061 ) 

Net exchange difference     -     -     -   (  83 )     -   (  83 ) 

Balance on December 

31
st
, 2020 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 303,535 

 

  $ 4,124,977 

 

  $ 89,808 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 4,518,320 

             

Net amount on 

December 31st, 2020 

 

  $ 228,229 

 

  $ 475,280 

 

  $ 2,300,250 

 

  $ 10,585 

 

  $ 243,332 

 

  $ 3,257,676 

 

  After eva luat ion, there is no sign o f impairment  in 2020 and 2019.  
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  The depreciat ion expense on property,  plant ,  and equipment  was 

calculated in the fo llowing service life based on linear basis:  

Buildings and improvements   

  Plant, machine room, and its 

improvements 

 
15-40 years 

  Office building, testing lab, and 

its improvements 

 
10-40 years 

  Warehouse building  11-45 years 

  Engineering system  35-40 years 

  Others  2-20 years 

Machinery and equipment  3-22 years 

Other equipment  3-10 years 

 

  In order to cooperate with the relocat ion o f petrochemical o il storage 

facilit ies from the manufacturers in o ld harbor area implemented by 

Taiwan Internat ional Ports Corporat ion, Ltd.  (Ports Corporat ion),  China 

General Terminal & Distr ibut ion Corporation  rented the terminal facilit y 

and hinter land at  Phase 2 Petrochemical Oil S torage and Dist r ibut ion 

Center in Kaohsiung Internat ional Container Terminal from Ports 

Corporat ion. The durat ion is from August  1
s t

,  2017 to July 31
st

,  2042 wit h 

quarter ly rent  payment .  The conso lidated company approved the 

construct ion of internat ional p hase 2 petrochemical o il center through the 

board reso lut ion in 2019. A package contract  on turnkey basis was signed 

with CTCI Corporat ion on October 7
th

,  2019 with total investment  pr ice 

of $765,893 thousand. Unt il December  31
st

,  2020, the conso lidated 

company has paid the payment  of $211,724 thousand for the project .  The 

payment  was recognized under the item o f construct ion.  

15. Lease agreement  

1) Right-of-use asset  

  December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Book value of right-of-use 

asset 

 

 

 

 

  Transportation equipment     $ 424     $ -  

     

  2020  2019 

Addition of right-of-use asset    $ 847     $ -  

Depreciation expense of 

right-of-use asset 

 

 

 

 

  Transportation equipment    $ 423    $ 421 

 



- 51 - 

  Besides,  the o ffice located in Taipei rent ed by the conso lidated 

company is sublet  to  other company under operat ing lease.  The re levant  

r ight -of-use asset  is recognized as investment  property.  Please refer to 

Note 16 “Investment  Property”.  The amount  of above r ight -of-use asset  

does not include the r ight -of-use asset  under the definit ion o f 

investment  property.  

2)   Lease liabilit y  

  December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Book value of lease liability     

  Current    $ 5,981     $ 5,496  

  Non-current    $ 18,946     $ 24,501  

 

  The range o f discount  rate for lease liabilit y is as below:  

  December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Transportation equipment  1.06%  - 

Building  1.06%  1.06% 

 

3) Other lease informat ion 

  2020  2019 

Short-term lease expense    $ 3,774    $ 3,375 

Changed lease payment that is 

not included into the 

measurement of lease 

liability 

 

  $ 844  

 

  $ 1,402  

Total cash (outflow) for lease   ( $ 10,833 )   ( $ 10,992 ) 

 

  The conso lidated company chose exempt ion applicable to  the 

recognit ion o f build ing lease for short -term lease but  will not  recognize 

it  as r ight -of-use asset  and lease liabilit y for the lease.  
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16.  Investment  property 

  

Land  

Buildings and 

improvements  

Right-of-use 

assets  Total 

Cost         
Balance on January 1st, 2019    $ 370,202     $ 260,486     $ -    $ 630,688  

Effects from retrospective 

application of IFRS 16 

 

   -     -     34,585     34,585 

Balance on January 1st, 2019 

(after revision) 

 

   370,202     260,486     34,585     665,273 

Net exchange difference     -   (  3,082 )     -   (  3,082 ) 

Balance on December 31st, 

2019 

 

  $ 370,202     $ 257,404    $ 34,585     $ 662,191 

         

Accumulated depreciation         

Balance on January 1st, 2019    $ -     $ 116,848     $ -     $ 116,848  
Depreciation expenses     -      4,494      5,461      9,955  

Net exchange difference        (  1,177 )     -   (  1,177 ) 

Balance on December 31st, 

2019 

 

  $ -     $ 120,165     $ 5,461     $ 125,626  

         

Net amount on December 31st, 

2019 

 

  $ 370,202     $ 137,239     $ 29,124     $ 536,565  

         

Cost         

Balance on January 1st, 2020    $ 370,202     $ 257,404    $ 34,585     $ 662,191 

Net exchange difference     -   (  6,291 )     -   (  6,291 ) 

Balance on December 31st, 
2020 

 
  $ 370,202     $ 251,113    $ 34,585     $ 655,900 

         

Accumulated depreciation         

Balance on January 1st, 2020    $ -    $ 120,165     $ 5,461     $ 125,626  

Depreciation expenses     -     4,325      5,460      9,785  

Net exchange difference     -   (  2,450 )     -   (  2,450 ) 

Balance on December 31st, 

2020 

 

  $ -    $ 122,040     $ 10,921     $ 132,961  

         

Net amount on December 31st, 

2020 

 

  $ 370,202    $ 129,073     $ 23,664     $ 522,939  

 

  The r ight -of-use asset  in investment  property is the o ffice rented by 

the conso lidated company to be sublet  as operat ing lease.  

  The lease durat ion of investment  property is five years.  The lessee 

does not  have the r ight  of fir st  refusal towards investment  property when 

the lease expires.  

  The total lease payment  to be collected in the future on the 

investment  property under operat ing lease is as below:  
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 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

The 1
st
 year    $ 16,343     $ 11,952  

The 2
nd

 year     15,547      4,599  

The 3
rd

 year     15,547      4,599  

The 4
th

 year     11,188      4,599  

The 5
th

 year     932      240  

    $ 59,557     $ 25,989  

 

The depreciat ion o f the investment  property is calculated with the 

fo llowing service li fe on a linear bas is:  

Building and improvement   

  Office building and its 

improvement 

 5-50 years 

Right-of-use asset  6 years 

 

  The investment  property- land is located in Linyuan Industr ial Park .  

It  belongs to  industr ial land , and it  does not  have frequent  market  trading 

informat ion for compar ison. It is difficult  to obtain reliable alternat ive 

fair value est imate.  Therefore,  the fair  value cannot  be determined 

reliably.  

  In addit ion, the fa ir value o f investment  property- land (excluding the 

land located in Linyuan Industrial Park),  build ings,  and i mprovements on 

December 31
s t

,  2020 was $1,753,235 thousand. The fair value was not  

assessed by independent  evaluat ing personnel but  only measured by the 

management  level at  t he conso lidated company with level 3 input  value 

on the evaluat ion model commonly used by market  part icipants.  The 

evaluat ion took reference o f the t rading pr ice from similar propert ies at  

nearby locat ion. When the t rading pr ice for per 3.3057 square meters at  

the nearby locat ion increases or decreases 10%, the conso lidated company 

also  increased or decreased the fair value of the investment  property on 

December 31
st

,  2020 for $175,324 thousand. 

  The fair va lue for r ight -of-use asset  is evaluated with the net  amount  

of expected rent  income deduct ing all the expected payment  before addin g 

the amount  of relevant  recognized lease liabilit y.  The fa ir value on 

December 31
st

,  2020 was $61,968 thousand. 

17.  Borrowings 
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1) Short -term borrowings  

  December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Unsecured loan     

Bank loan    $ 700,000    $ 1,100,000 

 

  The interest  rate of the bank revo lving loan on December 31
s t

,  

2020 and 2019 was 0.80%-0.82% and 0.90%-0.97% respect ively.  

2) Short -term bills  payable (December 31
s t

,  2020: None)  

  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Commercial paper payable      $ 650,000  

Deducting: Discount on notes 

and bills payable 

 

 

 

 (  56 ) 

      $ 649,944  

     

Range of interest rate    0.50%-0.77% 

 

3)  Long-term loan 

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Unsecured loan    $ 3,050,000    $ 3,950,000 

     

Range of interest rate  0.89%-0.95%  1.00%-1.06% 

 

  To provide medium- and long- term working cap ital,  the 

conso lidated company signed medium- and long-term credit  contracts 

with banks.  The total credit  amount  is $5,950,000 thousand, and the 

durat ion of the credit  contracts will be expired before October 2023 

one after another.  Up to December 31
st

,  2020, $3,050,000 thousand 

have been used from the total revo lving credit  amount  within the valid  

contract  durat ion.  

  Part  of the loan borrowed by the conso lidated company agree the 

current  rat io  and debt  rat io  on the financia l statement  must  not  be lower  

than specific rat io .  I f there is any inconsistence, an improvement  

measure shall be submit ted to  the bank.  

  Unt il December 31
s t

,  2020, the conso lidated company has not  

invo lved with any mat ter that  vio late the rat io  ment ioned above.  
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18.   Accounts payable  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Accounts payable (including 

related parties) 

 

 

 

 

Arising from operations    $ 287,756    $ 186,775 

 

  The average credit  per iod for accounts payable is one month. The 

conso lidated company has financial r isk management  po licy in place to  

ensure a ll the payables are set t led within the original agreed credit  

per iod.  

19. Other payables  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Payables for salaries and bonuses     $ 91,696     $ 77,464  

Payables for utilities      37,093      35,655  

Payables on paid leave     13,517      13,983  

Payables on freight     12,099      9,079  

Payables for dividends     5,699      5,527  

Payables for equipment     5,694      5,025  

Payables on insurance premium     1,953      4,108  

Others     27,197     32,586 

    $ 194,948     $ 183,427  

 

20.  Refund liabilit y-current  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Returns and allowances    $ 5,899    $ 5,899 

 

  The potent ial product  returns and allowances est imated by the 

conso lidated company are recognized as refund liabilit y according to  

IFRS 15.  

21. Post-emplo yment  benefit  plans  

1) Defined contribut ion plan  

  The pension system specified in “  Labor Pension Act” app licable  

to the conso lidat ed company is the defined contribut ion pension plan 

managed by the government .  6% of emplo yee’s salary should be 

contr ibuted to  the individual labor pension accounts at  the Bureau  o f 

Labor Insurance on monthly basis.  

2) Defined benefit  plan 
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  Among the conso lidated company, the pension system 

implemented by our company according to  “Labor Standards Act ” in 

our country is the defined benefit  plan managed by the government .  

The payment  o f employee pension is calculated according to  the job 

tenure and approved average salary from the six months before 

ret irement .  In 2020 and 2019, our company contributed 10% of total  

monthly emplo yee salar y every month as pension and forwarded it  to 

Supervisory Commit tee o f Workers ' Ret irement  Fund to deposit  to  the 

dedicated account  in Bank o f Taiwan under the name o f the commit tee.  

The dedicated account  is entrusted to  Bureau o f Labor Funds, MOL for  

management ,  and our company has no right  to affect  it s investment  

management  st rategy.  

  The amount  for defined benefit  plan listed  to  the conso lidated 

balance sheet  is as below:  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Present value of defined benefit 

obligations 

 

  $ 373,108  

 

  $ 406,749  

Fair value of plan assets   (  218,051 )   (  240,881 ) 

Net defined benefit liabilities    $ 155,057     $ 165,868  

 

  The change o f net  defined benefit  liabilit y (asset) is as below:  

  

Present value 

of defined 

obligations  

Fair value of 

plan assets  

Net defined 

benefit 

liabilities 

(assets) 

Balance on January 1
st
, 2019    $ 418,170   ( $ 209,500 )    $ 208,670 

Service cost       
  Current service cost     3,950     -     3,950 

Net interest expense (income)     3,576   (  1,794 )     1,782 

Recognition in profit or loss     7,526   (  1,794 )     5,732 

Remeasurements       
  Return on plat assets 

(except the amount 

included in net interest) 

 

   -   (  8,173 )   (  8,173 ) 
  Actuarial loss- changes in 

financial assumptions 
 

   6,820     -     6,820 
  Actuarial loss- experience 

adjustments 
 

 (  4,293 )     -   (  4,293 ) 

Recognition in other 

comprehensive income 

 
   2,527   (  8,173 )   (  5,646 ) 

 

 
    

 

(cont inued)  
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Present value 

of defined 

obligations  

Fair value of 

plan assets  

Net defined 

benefit 

liabilities 

(assets) 

Contribution by the employer   (  2,128 )   (  40,760 )   (  42,888 ) 

Benefit payment   (  19,346 )     19,346     - 

Balance on December 31
st
, 2019    $ 406,749   ( $ 240,881 )    $ 165,868 

       

Balance on January 1
st
, 2020    $ 406,749   ( $ 240,881 )    $ 165,868 

Service cost       
  Current service cost     3,276     -     3,276 

Interest expense (income)     2,436   (  1,524 )     912 

Recognition in profit or loss     5,712   (  1,524 )     4,188 

Remeasurements       
  Return on plat assets 

(except the amount 

included in net interest) 

 

   -   (  7,953 )   (  7,953 ) 
  Actuarial loss- changes in 

financial assumptions 
 

   6,091     -     6,091 
  Actuarial loss- experience 

adjustments 
 

   2,470      -     2,470  

Recognition in other 

comprehensive income 

 
   8,561   (  7,953 )   (  608 ) 

Contribution by the employer     -    (  15,607 )   (  15,607 ) 

Benefit payment   (  47,914 )     47,914     - 

Balance on December 31
st
, 2020    $ 373,108   ( $ 218,051 )    $ 155,057 

 

  The conso lidated company is exposed under t he fo llowing r isks 

due to the pension system o f “Labor Standards Act ”:  

 a. Investment risk: Bureau of Labor Funds, MOL invests the pension fund to the 

targets like domestic (overseas) equity securities, debt securities, and bank 

deposit through self-operation and entrusted management. However, the 

allocable amount of plan assets in the consolidated company shall be the profit 

calculated by the interest rate that is now lower than the interest rate of 

two-year time deposit in the local bank. 

 b.  Interest rate risk: The decline of interest rate of corporate bond will increase the 

present value of the defined benefit obligation. However, the return on debt 

investment of the plan asset will increase as well. These two carry out the 

effect of partly offsetting the impact of net defined benefit liability. 

 c. Salary risk: The calculation of present value of the defined benefit obligation is 

based on the future salary of the members in the plan as the reference. 
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Therefore, the increase of the salary for the members in the plan will also 

increase the present value of the defined benefit obligation. 

  The present  value o f the defined benefit  obligat ion in t he 

conso lidated company was assessed carefully by a  qualified actuary.  

Important  assumpt ions on the measurement  day are as below :  

  December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Discount rate  0.38%  0.63% 

Expected salary increase rate  2.25%  2.25% 

 

  I f major actuar ial assumpt ions invo lve with reasonable possible 

changes separately,  the increase (decrease) amount  of the defined 

benefit  obligat ion present  value under the condit ion o f other  

assumpt ions remaining the same is as below:  

  December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Discount rate     

  Increasing 0.25%   ( $ 6,091 )   ( $ 6,820 ) 

  Decreasing 0.25%    $ 6,257     $ 7,012  

Expected salary increase rate     

  Increasing 0.25%    $ 6,032     $ 6,775  

  Decreasing 0.25%   ( $ 5,904 )   ( $ 6,625 ) 

 

  Due to actuarial assumpt ions are likely related to  each other and it  

is  rarely that  the change only on a single assumpt ion, the above 

sensit ivity analys is might  not  be able to  re flect  the actual changes in 

the present  value of the defined benefit  obligat ion.  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Expected contributions to the 

plan for the next year 

 

  $ 50,000 

 

  $ 40,000 

Average expired time for the 

defined benefit obligation 

 

6.7 years 

 

6.9 years 
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22.  Equity 

1.  Common stock 

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Authorized shares (thousand 

shares) 

 

   620,000      620,000  

Authorized capital stock    $ 6,200,000     $ 6,200,000  

Issued and fully paid shares 

(thousand shares) 

 

   582,101      554,382  

Issued capital    $ 5,821,018     $ 5,543,827  

 

  Par value o f common stock  issued is $10, and each share is  

ent it led to  one vot ing r ight  and the r ight  of receiving divi dend.  

  On June 12
t h

,  2020, the reso lut ion at  Shareho lder ’s Meet ing 

approved the capit al increase in addit ional 27,719 thousand shares 

from the shareho lder dividend dist r ibuted by surplus.  Par value of each 

share is $10, and the actual paid - in capital aft er addit iona l shares is  

$5,821,018 thousand. The issuance o f bonus shares above has been 

approved by Secur it ies and Futures Bureau, FSC and been effect ive on 

July 2
nd

,  2020. The Board of Directors decided the record date for 

capital increase was Ju ly 29
t h

,  2020.  

2)  Capita l surplus  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Unclaimed dividends    $ 22,313     $ 21,412  

Changes in additional paid-in 

capital at associates 

recognized using equity 

method 

 

   10,959     2,988 

    $ 33,272     $ 24,400  

 

  Capital surplus,  generated from share issuance in excess of par  

value,  in the add it ional paid- in capital ( including common stock issued 

in the amount  excess o f par value) and  donat ion can be used to  cover  

the deficit .  I f there is no deficit  in the compan y, it  can be used to issue 

cash dividends or be appropr iated as capital.  However,  the 

appropr iat ion o f capit al shall be limit ed on a certain rat io  o f the paid - in 

capital every year.  
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  Addit ional paid- in capit al generated from the uncla imed dividen d 

among shareho lders due to  overdue can only be used to  cover deficit .  

Addit ional paid- in capital generated from investments using equit y 

method must  not  be used for any other purpose.  

1) Retaining earnings and dividend po licy  

  According to  the regulat ion on surplus dist r ibut ion specified in  

our Art icles of Incorporat ion, any surplus after tax from the annual 

accounts in the company shall be used to  cover the deficit  in t he 

previous year as pr ior it y.  I f there is  any remaining amount ,  allocate 

10% as legal reserve, the rest  will be dist r ibutable surplus of the year.  

Along with the accumulated undist r ibuted surplus from the previous 

year and the balance listed as or return to special reserve according to  

law or the regulat ions from the competent  authority,  it  is accumula ted 

dist r ibutable surplus.  Board o f Directors shall set  up the surplus 

dist r ibut ion plan and submit  to Shareho lder ’s Meet ing for reso lut ion 

according to  legal procedure s,  and the Shareho lder ’s meet ing can retain 

all o f or part  of surplus based on the actua l business situat ion.  The 

dist r ibut ion po licy o f employee and directors & supervisors 

remunerat ion specified in our Art icles of Incorporat ion can be referred 

to  Note 24- (7) Employee Reward and Director Remunerat ion.  

  When deciding surplus dist r ibut ion,  the dividends must  not  be 

lower than 10% of dist r ibutable surplus o f the year in order to  consider  

R&D development  and mult iple operat ions due to our company is in the 

mature industry.  Among it ,  the cash dividend must  not  be lower than 

10% of the total dividends.  However,  the company can decide not  to  

dist r ibute the dividend if the d ist r ibutable surplus per share is  lower  

than $0.1.  

  Legal reserve shall be allocated to  the balance amount  meet ing the 

total paid- in capital in the company. Legal reserve shall be used to 

cover the deficit  in the company. When the company has no defic it ,  the 

excess ive port ion o f legal reserve over 25% of the total paid - in capit a l 

can be dist r ibuted in cash other than being appropr iated to  ca pital.  

  Our company recognized and reversed special reserve according to official 

letter No. Chin Guan Cheng Fa Zi 1010012865 and “applicable Q&A for  
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recognit ion o f specia l reserve after adopt ing Internat ional Financia l 

Report ing Standards (IFRSs)”.   

  Our company held Shareho lder ’s Meet ing o n June 12
t h

,  2020 and 

June 24
t h

,  2019 and decided the fo llowing surplus dist r ibut ion for 2019 

and 2018:  

  Surplus distribution 

  2019  2018 

Legal reserve    $ 85,058     $ 28,683  

Cash dividends    $ 332,630     $ 166,315  

Stock dividend    $ 277,191     $ -  

Cash dividends per share ($)    $ 0.6    $ 0.3 

Stock dividend per share ($)    $ 0.5    $ - 

 

  Board of Directors in our company determined on March 5
t h

,  2021 

for the fo llowing surplus dist r ibut ion for 2020:  

    2020 

Legal reserve      $ 107,798 

Cash dividend      $ 698,522 

Share dividend      $ 116,420 

Cash dividends per share ($)      $ 1.2 

Share dividends per share ($)      $ 0.2 

 

  The surplus dist r ibut ion for 2020 is pending to be approved at  the 

Shareho lder ’s Meet ing that  will be held on June 11
t h

,  2021.  

2) Other equity item 

 a. Exchange differences on translation in financial statement for overseas 

operations 

  2020  2019 

Balance on January 1
st
    ( $ 221,959 )   ( $ 59,292 ) 

Generated in the year     

  Exchange differences 

on translation in 

financial statement 

for overseas 

operations 

 

   41,058    (  192,308 ) 

  Exchange different in 

the associates using 

equity method 

 

 (  5,315 )   (  8,821 ) 

Relevant income tax   (  8,212 )     38,462  

Other comprehensive 

income in the year 

 

 (  27,531 )   (  162,667 ) 

Closing balance   ( $ 194,428 )   ( $ 221,959 ) 
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 b.  Unrealized profit and loss on financial assets measured at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 

  2020  2019 

Opening balance    $ 97,939    ( $ 1,065 ) 

Generated in the year     

  Unrealized profit 

and loss 

 

   

    Equity 

instrument 

 

   1,032,335      122,885  

  Proportion in 

associates using 

equity method 

 

   42,221      4,360  

  Relevant income tax   (  3,454 )     1,069  

Other comprehensive 

income in the year 

 

   1,071,102      128,314  

Accumulated profit or 

loss on the disposal of 

equity instrument 

transferred to retained 

earnings 

 

   19,351    (  29,680 ) 

Proportion in associate 

using equity method 

 

   7,522      370  

Closing balance    $ 1,195,914     $ 97,939  

 

23.  Revenue 

1) Revenue from contracts with customers  

  2020  2019 

Sales revenue    $ 5,703,546    $ 6,791,157 

 

2)  Contract  balance  

  December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

 

January 1
st
, 2019 

Contract liabilities    $ 40,128    $ 24,049    $ 25,011 

 

24.  Net  profit  from cont inuing operat ions  

  Net profit  from cont inuing operat ions includes the fo llowing:  
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1) Interest  income 

  2020  2019 

Interest revenue     

  Bank deposits    $ 6,339     $ 8,605  

  Financial assets measured 

at fair value through 

profit or loss 

 

   1,325      5,763  

  Reverse repurchases notes     18     508 

    $ 7,682     $ 14,876  

 

2) Other income 

  2020  2019 

Rent income    $ 54,582    $ 56,343 

Dividend income     

  Financial assets measured 

at fair value through 

profit or loss 

 

   2,780     2,143  

  Investments in equity 

instrument measured at 

fair value through other 

comprehensive income 

 

   101,764     81,003 

     104,544     83,146  

Others     8,029     11,256  

    $ 167,155    $ 150,745  

 

3) Other profit s and losses  

  2020  2019 

Profit (loss) on financial assets 

and financial liabilities 

 

   

  Financial assets measured 

at fair value through 

profit or loss 

 

  $ 134,381    $ 49,514  

  Financial liabilities 

measured at fair value 

through profit or loss 

 

   2,018     3,080  

Net foreign exchange loss   (  12,905 )   (  12,449 ) 

Loss on disposal of investment   (  527 )     -  

Loss on disposal of property, 

plant, and equipment 

 

   -    (  20 ) 

Others   (  17,597 )   (  16,266 ) 

    $ 105,370    $ 23,859  
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4)  Financia l cost  

  2020  2019 

Bank loan interest    $ 42,239    $ 55,812  

Lease load interest     298     351  

    $ 42,537    $ 56,163  

 

  The conso lidated company does not  invo lve with capit alizat ion o f 

int erest  in both 2020 and 2019.  

5)  Depreciat ion and amort izat ion  

  2020  2019 

Property, plant and equipment    $ 304,393    $ 293,724 

Investment properties     9,785     9,955 

Right-of-use assets     423     421 

Intangible assets     35     35 

  Total    $ 314,636    $ 304,135 

     

An analysis of depreciation by 

function  

 

 

 

 

  Operating costs    $ 304,115     $ 293,476  

  Operating expenses     701      669  

  Other gains and losses     9,785     9,955 

    $ 314,601     $ 304,100  

An analysis of amortization by 

function  

 

 

 

 

  Operating expenses    $ 35     $ 35  

 

6) Expense of employee benefit  

  2020  2019 

Benefit after retirement (Note 

21) 

 

 

 

 

  Defined contribution plans    $ 7,777     $ 7,570  

  Defined benefit plans     4,188     5,732 

     11,965      13,302  

Other employee benefits     349,734     366,228 

Total employee benefit expense    $ 361,699     $ 379,530  

     

Summary by functions     

  Operating cost    $ 298,386     $ 312,032  

  Operating expense     63,313     67,498 

    $ 361,699     $ 379,530  

 

7)  Emplo yee reward and director remunerat ion 

  Our company allocated the benefit  before tax without  deduct ing 

reward dist r ibuted to employees and directors in the year in the rat io  o f 
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no less than 1% and no more than 1% for the dist r ibut ion o f emplo yee 

reward and director remunerat ion respect ively.  The reso lut ion fro m 

Board of Directors on March 5
t h

,  2021 and March 5
t h

,  2020 fo r  

employee reward and director remunerat ion in 2020 and 2019 

respect ively is  as below:  

Est imated rat io  

  2020  2019 

  Cash  Cash 

Employee reward  1%  1% 

Director remuneration  -  - 

 

Amount  

  2020  2019 

  Cash  Cash 

Employee reward    $ 12,937    $ 9,929 

Director remuneration     -     - 

 

  I f the amount  changes after the date of annual conso lidated 

financial statement  being approved and published, it  shall be handled 

according to change in account ing est imate.  The recognit ion shall be 

adjusted in t he next  fiscal year.  

  The actual dist r ibut ion amount  for emplo yee reward and director 

remunerat ion in 2019 and 2018 has no difference from the recognit ion 

in the conso lidated financia l statement  in 2019 and 2018.  

  Please check the informat ion o f our Board reso lut ion related to 

employee reward and director remunerat ion on “Market  Observat ion 

Post System” from the website o f Taiwan Stock Exchange.  

8) Gains or losses on foreign exchange  

  2020  2019 

Total foreign exchange profit    $ 24,334     $ 32,440  

Total foreign exchange loss   (  37,239 )   (  44,889 ) 

Net profit or loss   ( $ 12,905 )   ( $ 12,449 ) 

 

25.  Income tax from cont inuing operat ions  

1) Income tax recognized as pro fit  o f loss  

  Main items included in t he income tax expense are as below:



- 66 - 

 

  2020  2019 

Current income tax     

Generated in the year    $ 185,088     $ 151,042  

Tax on undistributed profit     5,771      5,941  

Tax on profit repatriation from 

subsidiaries 

 

   3,823  

 

   -  

Adjustment from the previous 

year 

 

 (  1,004 ) 

 

   78 

     193,678      157,061  

Deferred income tax     

Generated in the year   (  2,231 )     6,674  

Effects on deferred income tax 

from the profit repatriation  

by subsidiaries 

 

 (  9,558 ) 

 

   -  

Adjustment from the previous 

year 

 

 (  65 ) 

 

   85 

   (  11,854 )     6,759  

Income tax recognized in profit 

or loss 

 

  $ 181,824  

 

  $ 163,820  

 

  Adjustments for account ing income and income tax expense are as 

below:  

  2020  2019 

Net profit before tax from 

continuing operations 

 

  $ 1,285,411     $ 984,841  

Income tax from net profit 

before tax calculated on 

legal tax rate 

 

  $ 267,580     $ 198,320  

Expense from tax adjustments   (  52,378 )   (  22,870 ) 

Tax-free income   (  41,903 )   (  17,734 ) 

Tax on undistributed profit     5,771      5,941  

Tax on profit repatriation from 

subsidiaries 

 

   3,823      -  

Adjustment of current income 

tax in the previous year  

 

 (  1,069 )     163 

Income tax recognized in profit 

or loss 

 

  $ 181,824     $ 163,820  

 

  Our country revised Statute for Industrial Innovat ion in July 2019 

and enacted by the President  to  clear ly specify specific assets or 

techno logy constructed or purchased with the undist r ibuted surplus 

since 2018 can be recognized as the deduct ion items for the calculat ion 

of undist r ibuted surplus.  When the consolidated company calculated 
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the tax on undist r ibuted surplus,  only the capital expenditure that  is  

actually used for re- investment  was deducted.  

2)   Income tax recognized as other comprehensive income  

  2020  2019 

Deferred income tax      

Generated in the year     

  －Exchange in overseas 

operations 

 

 ( $ 8,212 )    $ 38,462  

  －Unrealized profit or loss 

on financial assets 

measured at fair value 

through other 

comprehensive income 

 

 (  3,454 )     1,069  

  － Remeasurements on 

defined benefit plan 

 

   122    (  1,129 ) 

Tax benefit recognized as other 

comprehensive income 

 

 ( $ 11,544 )    $ 38,402  

 

3) Current  income tax liabilit y  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Current income tax liabilities    $ 189,737     $ 146,341  

 

4) Deferred income tax assets and liabilit ies  

  Changes on deferred income tax assets and liabilit ies are as below:  

2020 

 

 

Opening 

balance  

Recognized as 

profit or loss  

Recognized as 

other 

comprehensive 

income  

Closing 

balance 

Deferred income tax assets         

Temporary difference         
  Unrealized inventory 

valuation loss 
 

  $ 107   ( $ 82 )    $ -    $ 25 
  Unrealized impairment loss 

on office supplies 
 

   7,188     791     -     7,979 
  Unrealized sales allowance     1,180     -     -     1,180 
  Unrealized material loss     1,215   (  124 )     -     1,091 
  Unrealized financial liability 

valuation profit or loss 
 

   -     782      -     782 
  Paid leave payable     2,535   (  92 )     -     2,443 
  Defined benefit pension plan     33,277   (  2,249 )     122      31,150 
  Book-tax difference on 

inventory 
 

   284   (  216 )     -     68 

 

 

    

 

 
  Exchange differences on 

foreign operations 
 

   45,612     -   (  8,212 )     37,400 
  Unrealized exchange loss     1,022   (  1,022 )          - 

    $ 92,420   ( $ 2,212 )   ( $ 8,090 )    $ 82,118 
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Opening 

balance  

Recognized as 

profit or loss  

Recognized as 

other 

comprehensive 

income  

Closing 

balance 
         

Deferred income tax liabilities         

Temporary difference         
  Reserve for land value 

increment tax 
 

 ( $ 21,469 )    $ -    $ -   ( $ 21,469 ) 
  Reserve for bad debts   (  267 )     -     -   (  267 ) 
  Unrealized foreign exchange 

gains 
 

   -   (  626 )     -   (  626 ) 
  Recognition in book-tax 

difference on depreciation 
 

 (  422 )     29     -   (  393 ) 
  Investment gains recognized 

using equity method 
 

 (  28,647 )     14,579      -   (  14,068 ) 
  Profit or loss in value of 

unrealized financial assets 
 

 (  1,850 )     19    (  3,454 )   (  5,285 ) 
  Others   (  65 )     65     -     -  

   ( $ 52,720 )    $ 14,066   ( $ 3,454 )   ( $ 42,108 ) 

2019 

 

 

Opening 

balance  

Recognized as 

profit or loss  

Recognized as 

other 

comprehensive 

income  

Closing 

balance 

Deferred income tax assets         

Temporary difference         
  Unrealized inventory 

valuation loss 
 

  $ 915   ( $ 808 )    $ -    $ 107 
  Unrealized impairment loss 

on office supplies 
 

   6,938     250     -     7,188 
  Unrealized sales allowance     1,180     -     -     1,180 
  Unrealized material loss     1,316   (  101 )     -     1,215 
  Unrealized financial liability 

valuation profit or loss 
 

   415   (  415 )     -     - 
  Paid leave payable     2,628   (  93 )     -     2,535 
  Defined benefit pension plan     41,515   (  7,109 )   (  1,129 )     33,277 
  Book-tax difference on 

inventory 
 

   57     227     -     284 
  Exchange difference in 

overseas operation 
 

   7,150     -     38,462     45,612 
  Unrealized exchange loss     -     1,022      -     1,022 

    $ 62,114   ( $ 7,027 )    $ 37,333    $ 92,420 
         

Deferred income tax liabilities         

Temporary difference         
  Reserve for land value 

increment tax 
 

 ( $ 21,469 )    $ -    $ -   ( $ 21,469 ) 
  Reserve for bad debts   (  267 )     -     -   (  267 ) 
  Unrealized foreign exchange 

gains 
 

 (  548 )     548     -     - 
  Recognition in book-tax 

difference on depreciation 
 

 (  435 )     13     -   (  422 ) 
  Investment gains recognized 

using the equity method 
 

 (  28,372 )   (  275 )     -   (  28,647 ) 
  Profit or loss in value of 

unrealized financial assets 
 

 (  2,901 )   (  18 )     1,069   (  1,850 ) 
  Others   (  65 )     -     -   (  65 ) 

   ( $ 54,057 )    $ 268    $ 1,069   ( $ 52,720 ) 
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5) Income tax assessment  

  The profit - seeking enterpr ise annual income tax return in our 

company and in t he company that  Asia Po lymer invested has been 

assessed by Revenue Service Office  to  2018.  

26. Earnings per share  

Unit : $/ per share  

  2020  2019 

Basic earnings per share    $ 1.90     $ 1.41 

Diluted earnings per share    $ 1.89     $ 1.41 

 

  When calculat ing earnings per share,  the impact  of bonus shares has  

been adjusted. The record date of the bonus shares was on July 29
t h

,  2020.  

Due to the ret roact ive adjustment ,  the changes of basic and earnings per  

share in 2019 are as below:  

Unit : $/ per share  

  Before adjustment  After adjustment 

Basic earnings per share    $ 1.48    $ 1.41 

Diluted earnings per share    $ 1.48    $ 1.41 

  The surplus and the weighted average ordinary shares used to 

calculate earnings per share is as below:  

Net  profit  for the year  

  2020  2019 

Net profit used to calculate basic 

and diluted earnings per share 

 

  $ 1,103,587    $ 821,021 

 

Unit : thousand shares 

  2020  2019 

Shares     

Weighted average shares used to 

calculate earnings per share 

 

   582,102     582,102 

Effect of potentially dilutive 

ordinary shares: 

 

   

  Employee reward     786     714 

Weight average common shares 

used to calculate diluted 

earnings per share 

 

   582,888     582,816 

 

  I f the conso lidated company can choose to issue employee reward in  

stock or in cash, it  should be assumed the employee reward will be issued 

in stock when calculat ing diluted earnings per share.  When the p otent ia l 
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common stock is with dilut ing effect ,  add the weighted average ordinar y 

shares outstanding to  calculate the dilut ing earnings per share.  When 

calculat ing diluted earnings per share before the reso lut ion in the 

fo llowing year for emplo yee reward is sued in stock, the dilut ing effect  o f 

the potent ial common stock shall be considered as well.  

27. Capita l r isk management  

  The conso lidated company carr ied out  capital management  to  ensure 

each enterpr ise in the group will be able to  opt imize the balance of debt s 

and equity to  achieve the maximum shareho lder ’s equit y under the 

condit ion o f cont inuing operat ions.  The overall st rategy implemented by 

the conso lidated has not been changed since 2013.  

  The capital st ructure in t he conso lidated company inc ludes net  debts 

(that  is loan deduct ing cash and cash equivalents) and equity at t ributed to  

the shareho lders in our company (that  is capital stock, addit ional paid- in 

capital,  retained earnings,  and other equity items).  

28.  Financia l inst rument  

1) Informat ion o f fair value- financia l inst ruments that  is not  measured at  fair  

value 

  The management  level in the conso lidated company believ es the 

book values for financia l assets and financial liabilit ies that  are not  

measured at  fair value are all closed to  the fair value.  

2)   Informat ion o f fair value- financial ins t ruments measured at  fair value 

on a basis o f duplicat ion  

 a. Levels of fair value 
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December 31
st

,  2020 

  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial assets measured 

at fair value through 
profit or loss 

 

       

Domestic listed (over the 

counter) stock 

 

  $ 248,175    $ -    $ -    $ 248,175 

Fund beneficiary 

certificate 

 

   837,676     -     -     837,676 

    $ 1,085,851    $ -    $ -    $ 1,085,851 

Financial assets measured 

at fair value through 

other comprehensive 

income 

 

       

Investments in equity 
instruments 

 
       

  Domestic listed (over 

the counter) stock 

 

  $ 3,063,507    $ -    $ -    $ 3,063,507 

  Overseas listed stock     17,480     -     -     17,480 

  Not listed (over the 

counter) domestic 

stock 

 

   -     -     275,798     275,798 

  Not-listed overseas 

stock 

 

   -     -     57,127     57,127 

    $ 3,080,987    $ -    $ 332,925    $ 3,413,912 

         

Financial liabilities 
measured at fair value 

through profit or loss 

 

       

Derivative instruments    $ -    $ 3,912    $ -    $ 3,912 
 

December 31
st

,  2019 

  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial assets measured 

at fair value through 
profit or loss 

 

       

Derivative instruments    $ -     $ 94     $ -     $ 94  
Domestic listed shares     167,154     -     -     167,154 

Mutual funds beneficiary 

certificate 

 

   2,479,130     -     -     2,479,130 

    $ 2,646,284    $ 94    $ -    $ 2,646,378 

Financial assets measured 

at fair value through 

other comprehensive 

income 

 

       

Investments in equity 

instruments 

 

       
  Domestic listed (over 

the counter) stock 

 

  $ 2,132,874    $ -    $ -    $ 2,132,874 

  Overseas listed stock     4,946     -     -     4,946 

  Not listed (over the 

counter) domestic 

stock 

 

   -     -     237,776     237,776 

  Not-listed overseas 

stock 

 

   -     -     55,635     55,635 

    $ 2,137,820    $ -    $ 293,411    $ 2,431,231 

         

No transfer between level 1 and level 2 fair value in 2020 and 2019.
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 b.  Adjustment  on financial inst ruments measured at  level 3 fair value  

2020 

 

 

Financial assets 

measured at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive 

income 

Financial asset  Equity instrument 

Opening balance    $ 293,411 

Recognized in other comprehensive income 

(included unrealized gain or loss on financial 

assets measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income) 

 

   73,649 

Returned capital stock from investee company 

(Note 8) 

 

 (  34,135 ) 

Closing balance    $ 332,925 

 

2019 

 

 

Financial assets 

measured at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive 

income 

Financial asset  Equity instrument 

Opening balance    $ 327,781  

Recognized in other comprehensive income 

(included unrealized profit or loss on financial 

assets measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income) 

 

   32,212  

Disposal   (  41,892 ) 

Returned capital stock from investee company 

(Note 8) 

 

 (  24,690 ) 

Closing balance    $ 293,411  

 

 c. Evaluation technology and inputs for measurement at level 2 fair value 

Category of financial 

instrument 

 

Evaluation technology and inputs 

Derivative instruments- 

foreign exchange forward 

contract 

 Discounted cash flow method: Future cash 

flow is estimated by observable forward 

foreign exchange rate at the closing period 

and the exchange rate specified in the 

contract. It is discounted by the discount rate 

that is able to reflect the credit risk for the 

counterparty of the transaction. 
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 d. Evaluat ion techno logy and inputs for measurement  at  level 3 fair  

value 

  In terms of evaluat ion process for level 3 fair value,  the 

Finance Department  in t he conso lidate company is responsible fo r  

carrying out the ver ificat ion o f independent  fair va lue on financia l 

inst ruments to  make sure the eva luat ion result  is close to the 

market  status through independent  source of informat ion.  

Moreover,  regular ver ificat ion shall be carr ied out  to  ensure the 

result  of evaluat ion is reasonable.  The conso lidated company 

evaluates domest ic and overseas not  listed (over the counter) 

equity investments according to  asset -based approach. The 

determinat ion of the fair value will be decided with the reference 

to  the latest  net  value o f the investee company and its observable 

financial and business situat ions.  When the liquid ity discount  

reduces,  the fair value of the investment  will increase.  When the 

net  asset  value at  the investee company increases/ decreases 1%,  

the fair va lue will increase/ decrease $3,329 thousand. 

3) Type o f financia l inst rument  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Financial assets     

Measurement at fair value 

through profit or loss 

 

   

  Mandatorily classified as 

at fair value through 

profit or loss 

 

  $ 1,085,851    $ 2,646,378 

Financial assets measure at 

amortized cost (Remark 1) 

 

   1,396,908     1,692,134 

Financial assets measured at 

fair value through other 

comprehensive income 

 

   

  Investments in equity 

instruments 

 

   3,413,912     2,431,231  

     

Financial liabilities     

Measured at fair value through 

profit or loss 

 

   

  Holding for trading     3,912     -  

Measured at amortized cost 

(Remark 2) 

 

   4,282,590     6,236,734  
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Remark 1: Balance refers to  the loans and receivables measured at  

amort ized cost ,  including cash and cash equivalent s,  accounts 

receivable ( including related part ies),  and other receivables 

( including related part ies but  excluding tax refund receivab le).   

Remark 2: Balance refers to  the financial liabilit ies measured at  

amort ized cost ,  including short -term loans,  short -term notes and 

bills  payable,  accounts payable ( inc luding related part ies),  

other payables ( inc luding related part ies),  and long -term loans.  

4) Purpose and po licy o f financia l r isk management  

  The r isk control and hedging st rategy carr ied out the conso lidated 

company are affected by the operat ing environment .  However,  the 

conso lidated company has implemented proper risk management  and 

cont rol operat ion based on the nature of business and pr inciple o f r isk 

diversificat ion. The r isk inc ludes market  risk (exchange rate r isk,  

int erest  rate risk,  and other pr ice r isk s),  credit  r isk,  and liquidity r isk.  

 a. Market risk 

  The main market  risk that  the conso lidated company 

undertakes is the r isk of exchange rate change and the r isk o f 

int erest  rate change due to the operat ing act ivit ies in the 

conso lidated company.  

  The r isk exposure o f the market  risk related to  financia l 

inst ruments in the conso l idated company as well as the 

management  and evaluat ion to the r isk exposure are not  changed.  

 (1) Exchange rate risk 

  The conso lidated company engages with sales and 

purchases t ransact ion valued at  foreign currency, and it  

generates the r isk exposure o f foreign exchange rate change 

in the conso lidated company. In order to  avo id the decrease 

of foreign currency asset  value and the fluctuat ion of future 

cash flow caused by the change o f exchange rate,  the 

conso lidated company avo ids the impact  of exchange r ate 

change through the neutral o ffset  of foreign currency assets 

and liabilit ies.  Furthermore,  relevant  r isks are avo ided by net  

foreign currency posit ion supported with forward exchange 
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contract .  The conso lidated company uses forward exchange 

contract  to avo id r isk exposure in order to minimize the 

impact  of the r isk.  The applicat ion of forward exchange 

contract  is regulated by the po licy approved by the Board o f 

Directors in the conso lidated company.  Internal audit ing 

personnel cont inue carrying out verif icat ion on the 

compliance o f the policy and the limit  of risk exposure.  The 

conso lidated company did not  carry out forward exchange 

contract  t rading under speculat ive purpose.  

  The book va lue for currency assets and currency 

liabilit ies that  are not  under funct ional currency valuat ion in 

the conso lidated company on the date of balance sheet  can be 

referred to  Note 31. Please refer to Note 7 for book value o f 

der ivat ive inst rument  that  is under exposure of exchange rate 

r isk.  

Sensit ivity analys is  

  For sensit ivity analys is o f foreign exchange rate r isk,  it  

is  mainly calculated by the monetary items o f foreign 

currency (mainly USD) on closing date dur ing financia l 

report ing per iod. When the funct iona l currency used in the 

conso lidated company appropr iates/ depreciates 3% against  

USD, the net  profit  before tax for the conso lidated company 

in 2020 will decrease/ increase $ 6,214 thousand. The net  

profit  before tax in 2019 will decreas e/ increase $7,448 

thousand.  

  The sensit ivity analys is above was calculated with the 

foreign currency r isk exposure amount  on the date of balance 

sheet ,  and the management  level believed the sensit ivit y 

analys is was not  able to  reflect  the r isk exposure dur ing the 

year.  

 (2) Interest rate risk 

  Due to the conso lidated company possesses financia l 

assets and financial liabilit ies in fixed int erest  rate,  it  is  

under the r isk exposure o f fair value caused by the change o f 
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int erest  rate.  The possession o f financia l assets and financia l 

liabilit ies in float ing interest  rate causes the cash flow r isk 

exposure o f interest  rate change. The management  level at  the 

conso lidated company regu lar ly monitors the change in the 

market  interest  rate and make sure the interest  rate of the 

conso lidated company is close to  market  interest  rate through 

the adjustment  on the posit ion o f financial assets and 

financial liabilit ies with float ing int erest  rate in order to  

respond to the r isk caused by the change of market  interest  

rate. 

  The book value of financial assets in the conso lidated 

company under int erest  rate r isk exposure on the date o f 

balance sheet  is as below:  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

With fair value interest 

rate risk 

 

 

 

 

  －Financial assets    $ 457,844    $ 802,232 

  －Financial 

liabilities 

 

   724,927 

 

   1,779,941 

With cash flow interest 

rate risk 

 

 

 

 

  －Financial assets     183,923     129,163 

  －Financial 

liabilities 

 

   3,050,000 

 

   3,950,000 

 

Sensit ivity analys is  

  For the sensit ivity ana lys is related to  interest  rate risk,  

the conso lidated company carr ied out the calculat ion based 

on the financial assets and financia l liabilit ies on the date o f 

balance sheet .  The conso lidated company used the 0.5% of 

market  interest  rate increase/ decrease a s the basis to report 

reasonable r isk assessment  under the change o f interest  rate 

to  the management  level.  Under the situat ion o f all t he other  

var iables remain the same,  the 0.5% of market  interest  rate 

increase/ decrease will reduce the net  profit  befor e tax to  the 

conso lidated company in 2020 caused by financial assets and 
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financial liabilit ies with cash flow int erest  rate risk in 

$14,330 thousand. The net  profit  before tax in 2019 

decreased/ increased $19,104 thousand.  

 (3) Other price risks 

  The conso lidated company is exposed under fair value 

r isk due to the possession o f secur it ie s investment ,  like 

domest ic and overseas stock as well as fund beneficiar y 

cert ificate.  The management  level at  the conso lidated 

company manages r isks through the possessio n o f investment  

port fo lio  under different  risks.  In addit ion, the conso lidated 

company assigns a specific team to monitor the pr ice r isk.  

Sensit ivity analys is  

  The sensit ivity analys is below was carr ied out  based on 

the pr ice for marketable secur it ies  on the date o f balance 

sheet .  However,  the risk o f pr ice fluctuat ion for the money 

market  fund among the financial assets measured at  fair value 

through profit  or  loss invested by the conso lidated company 

was very low. Therefore,  it  was not  included in the analys is.  

  I f the equity pr ice increases/ decreases 5%, the net  

profit  before tax in 2020 and in 2019 will increase/ decrease 

$15,478 thousand and $20,051 thousand respect ively due to  

the increase/decrease o f fair value on the financia l assets 

(excluding the investment  of money market  fund) measured at  

fair value through pro fit  or loss.  The other comprehensive 

income before tax in 2020 and in 2019 increased/decre ased 

$170,696 thousand and $121,562 thousand due to the 

increase/decrease o f fair value of the financial asset s 

measured at  fair value through other comprehens ive income.  

 b.  Credit risk 

  Credit  r isk refers to  the r isk o f financial lo ss in the 

conso lidated company caused by the overdue contract  obligat ion 

from the counterparty.  Unt il the date of balance sheet ,  the 

maximum credit  r isk exposure of financial loss in the conso lidated 

company caused by the non-performing obligat ion from the 
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counterparty and the financia l guarantee provided by the 

conso lidated company was from:  

 (1) The book value of financial assets recognized in the consolidated balance 

sheet. 

 (2) The consolidated company provides financial guarantee and is likely 

needed to pay the maximum amount without considering the possibility 

of occurrence. 

  The policy adopted by the conso lidated company is to  only 

t rade with ent it ies with good credit  reputat ion in order to  reduce 

the r isk o f financia l loss.  The conso lidated company will cont inue 

monitor credit  r isk exposure and the credit ing situat ion o f th e 

counterparty.  

  The objects of the accounts receivable in t he conso lidated 

company covered numerous customers  and were spread in 

different  areas without  center ing in one single customer or area.  

Bes ides,  the conso lidated company cont inues evaluat ing the 

financial status of the accounts rece ivable; t herefore,  the credit  

r isk invo lved was limit ed.  

 c. Liquidity risk 

  The management  level at  the conso lidated company maintains  

cash and cash equivalents as well as bank financing amount  in 

sufficient  posit ions to  support operat ing capital required and 

reduce liquid ity r isk.  

  The conso lidated company has sufficient  capital in place,  and 

there is no liquidity r isk for non-performing contract  obligat ion 

due to failure of financing.  

 (1) Liquidity and interest rate risk table 

  The fo llowing table clear ly presents the analys is o f 

remaining contract  durat ion o f t he non-der ivat ive financ ia l 

liabilit ies that  the conso lidated company has agreed the 

per iod for repayment .  It  is prepared with the informat ion o f 

ear liest  repayment  date as well as undiscounted cash flow on 

financial liabilit ies.  
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December 31
st

,  2020 

  

Weighted 

average 
effective 

interest rate 

(%)  

Pay on demand 

or shorter than 

1 year  1-5 years  

More than 5 

years 

Non-derivative 

financial 

liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Liabilities with 

no interest 

   

  $ 413,154 

 

  $ 27,740 

 

  $ - 

Lease liabilities  1.06%     6,216     19,290     - 

Fixed interest 

rate 

instrument 

 0.81%  

   700,000 

 

   - 

 

   - 
Floating interest 

rate 

instrument 

 0.91%  

   - 

 

   3,050,000 

 

   - 

      $ 1,119,370    $ 3,097,030    $ - 

 

December 31
st

,  2019 

  

Weighted 

average 
effective 

interest rate 

(%)  

Pay on demand 

or shorter than 

1 year  1-5 years  

More than 5 

years 

Non-derivative 

financial 

liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Liabilities with 

no interest 

   

  $ 490,977 

 

  $ 41,350 

 

  $ - 

Lease liabilities  1.06%     5,496     22,576     1,925 

Fixed interest 

rate 

instrument 

 0.83%  

   1,750,000 

 

   - 

 

   - 
Floating interest 

rate 

instrument 

 1.05%  

   - 

 

   3,950,000 

 

   - 

      $ 2,246,473    $ 4,013,926    $ 1,925 

 

 (2) Loan commitment 

  Bank loan is an important  source of liquidity for the 

conso lidated company. The unused loan commitment  by the 

conso lidated company on the date of balance sheet  is as 

below:  

 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Bank loan limit     

  －Amount used    $ 3,750,000    $ 5,700,000  

  －Amount unused     5,714,800     3,029,800 

    $ 9,464,800    $ 8,729,800  
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29. Related party t ransact ion  

  The ult imate parent  ent it y o f our company’s is USI Corporat ion, and 

the common stock held by it  indirect ly by December 31
st

,  2020 and 2019 

were both 36.08%. 

  All the t ransact ions,  account  balance,  revenue, and expenses between 

our company and our subsidiar ies (that  is the related part ies o f our 

company) have been eliminated. Therefore,  they are  not  disclosed in the 

note.  Other than the disclosure in other notes,  the t ransact ion between the 

conso lidated company and other related part ies is as below:  

1)  Summar y o f the name o f the related party that  carr ies out  significant  

t ransact ion with our company, and it s relat ionship with our company is as 

below:  

Name of the related party  Relationship with our 

company 

USI Corporation (USI)  Ultimate parent entity 

Union Polymer International Investment Cor.  

(Union Polymer) 

 Parent company 

China General Plastics Corporation (CGPC)  Associate 

China General Terminal & Distribution Corporation 

(CGTD) 

 Associate 

ACME Electronics Corporation (ACME)  Associate 

USI Optronics Corporation (USIO)  Associate 

Swanson Plastics Corporation (SPC)  Associate 

Taiwan VCM Corporation (TVCM)  Associate 

CGPC Polymer Corporation (CGPCP)  Associate 

Forever Young Company Limited（Forever Young）  Associate 

Swanson Technologies Corporation (STC)  Associate 

Taita Chemical Company Limited  (TTC)  Fellow subsidiary 

Taiwan United Venture Management Corporation 

(TUVM) 

 Fellow subsidiary 

USI Management Consulting Corporation  (UM)  Fellow subsidiary 

USIFE Investment Co., Ltd.  (USII)  Fellow subsidiary 

INOMA Corporation  (INOMA)  Fellow subsidiary 

Chong Loong Trading Co., Ltd.  Fellow subsidiary 

USI（Hong Kong）（USI (HK)）  Fellow subsidiary 

USI Education Foundation  (USIF)  Substantive related 

party 
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2)  Sales 

Category/ name of the related 

party 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Ultimate parent entity     

  USI Corporation    $ 663,182    $ 843,103  

Associate     37,375     55,291  

Fellow subsidiary     14,822     20,973 

    $ 715,379    $ 919,367  

 

  The sales pr ice and terms of t ransact ion to related part ies are the 

same as that  to  non-related part ies.  

3) Purchases  

Category/ name of the related 

party 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Ultimate parent entity     

  USI Corporation    $ 217,849    $ 283,354  

Associate     28,322     33,572  

Fellow subsidiary     10,998     51,269 

    $ 257,169    $ 368,195  

 

  Relevant  terms of t ransact ion and pr ice for purchases from related 

part ies are the same as that  from non-re lated part ies.。  

4) Management  fee (recognized management  fee)  

Category/ name of the related 

party 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Ultimate parent entity     

  USI Corporation    $ 8,470    $ 8,403 

Fellow subsidiary     

  UM     39,286     42,566  

  Others     550     711  

     39,836     43,277  

    $ 48,306    $ 51,680  

 

5)  Lease agreement  

Rent  expense  

Category/ name of the related 

party 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Ultimate parent entity     

  USI Corporation    $ 2,783     $ 2,424  
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6) Rental agreement  

Rent  income 

Category/ name of the related 

party 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Ultimate parent entity     

  USI Corporation    $ 3,534    $ 2,825 

Parent company     

  Union Polymer     36     176 

Associate     

  TVCM     12,680      12,912  

  Others     6,500     6,069 

     19,180      18,981  

Fellow subsidiary     

  TTC     6,686      7,157  

  Others     2,601     2,800 

     9,287      9,957  

    $ 32,037     $ 31,939  

 

  Associates rent  pipelines from the conso lidated company, and the 

durat ion is one year.  When it  is due but  without  further declarat ion, it  

will be regarded contract  renewal automat ically.  The rent  shall be 

calculated with the actual operat ing vo lume and paid monthly.  

7)  Char it able donat ion (recognized as management  fee)  

Category/ name of the related 

party 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Substantive related party     

  USI Education Foundation    $ 3,000    $ 2,000  

 

8) Management  service income ( recognized as other revenue)  

Category/ name of the related 

party 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Associate    $ 1,905    $ 1,577  

 

9) Investment  consult ing fee (recognized as other gains and losses)  

Category/ name of the related 

party 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Fellow subsidiary     

  TUVM    $ 1,397    $ 1,734  
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10)  Accounts receivable  

Category/ name of the related 

party 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Ultimate parent entity     

  USI Corporation    $ 189,988    $ 147,057  

Associate     3,549     6,211  

Fellow subsidiary     3,876     3,516 

    $ 197,413    $ 156,784  

 

11) Other receivables  

Category/ name of the related 

party 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Ultimate parent entity     

  USI Corporation    $ 117    $ 2,013 

Associate     

  CGTD     1,000     832  

  Others     287     396 

     1,287      1,228  

Fellow subsidiary     

  TTC     617     667  

  Others     4     107 

     621     774 

    $ 2,025     $ 4,015  

 

  Other rece ivables- The receivables from the related part ies are the 

payment  of ult imate parent  company and associates rent ing o ffices 

from our company.  

12)  Accounts payable  

Category/ name of the related 

party 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Ultimate parent entity     

  USI Corporation    $ 45,590     $ 40,608  

Associate     3,243      2,727  

Fellow subsidiary     

  TTC     -     8,668 

    $ 48,833     $ 52,003  
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13)  Other payables  

Category/ name of the related 

party 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Ultimate parent entity     

  USI Corporation    $ 46,442     $ 160,383  

Associate     2,947      5,591  

Fellow subsidiary     497     614 

    $ 49,886     $ 166,588  

 

  Other payables- The payables to related part ies are the payment  

for the t ransfer and procurement  o f ethylene from our company to the 

ult imate parent  ent it y.  

14) Salary for the main management  level  

  Total amount  o f salary for directors and other main management  

levels in 2020 and in 2019 is as be low:  

  2020  2019 

Short-term employee benefit    $ 16,355     $ 14,922  

Benefit after retirement     -     27 

    $ 16,355     $ 14,949  

 

  Salar y for directors and other main management  levels is  

determined by Remunerat ion Commit tee based on persona l 

performance and market  t rend.  

30.  Important  commitment ,  subsequent ,  and c ont ingent  events  

1) Important  commitment  

  Up to December 31
st

,  2020, the ba lance of let ter of credit  that  has 

been issued but  not  due in the conso lidated company was $ 370,000 

thousand.  

2)  Important  contract  

 a. Our company and USI Corporation signed the joint venture agreement for the 

project of Gulei investment on April 17
th

, 2014. The counterparties for the 

contract or agreement are Ho Tung Chemical Corporation, LCY Chemical 

Corporation, Hsin Tay Petroleum Co., Ltd., Chenergy Global Corporation, and 

Lien Hwa Industr ial Ho ldings Corporation . The main content  

inc ludes (1)  shareholders shall invest and establish Ever Victory Globa l 

Ltd.  (hereinafter referred to  as “the Joint  Venture Company”)  

according to the provision o f the contract and agree set t ing up a 
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100% shareho lding company,  Dynamic Ever Investments Limited 

(here inafter referred to a “Hong Kong Company”) in Hong Kong 

for the investment  of oil refining in Gulei Park located in 

Zhangzhou City,  Fujian Province, China and the manufactur ing o f 

seven products includ ing ethylene as well as other businesses that  

are approved by the competent  author ity of R.O.C. and agreed by 

the board reso lut ion in the Jo int  Venture Company. (2)Hong Kong 

Company and Fujian Petrochemical Co.,  Ltd.  established a 

company under co- investment  in Gule i Park in Zhangzhou City,  

Fujian Province based on the law o f People’s Republic o f China to  

run the purpose o f the business o f the jo int  venture company 

(here inafter referred to as Gule i Company).  Hong Kong  company 

obtained 50% of issued shares o f Gulei Company as t he 

accordance o f co - investment .  However,  the total amount  that  the 

Jo int  Venture company has to invested to Gulei Company 

increased after signing the orig inal jo int  venture agreement  due to 

the increase o f fund for the investment  plan. It caused part  of the 

origina l contract  or agreement  counterpart ies were not  able to  

perform the contract  in the investment  rat io  specified in t he 

origina l jo int  venture contract .  As a result ,  our company and USI  

Corporat ion re-entered the jo int  venture contract  with origina l 

contract  or agreement  co unterpart ies as well as CTCI Corporat ion 

on September 30
t h

,  2016. The or iginal jo int  venture contract  

terminated at  the same t ime.  

  Unt il December 31
s t

,  2018, our company and USI Corporat ion 

has invested to Ever Conquest  Global Ltd.  in accumulated 

US$103,240 thousand (around NT$3,190,905 thousand) and US$ 

176,268 thousand (around NT$5,442,336  thousand) respect ively 

(recognized as investment  using equity method).  The company 

serves as a medium to re-invest  the jo int  venture company, and it  

re- invested Hong Kong Company in January and July 2017 and in 

August  2018 in total amount  of US$343,977 thousand. In Apr i l 

and August  2017 and November 2018, it  re - invested Gule i 

Company in total amount  of RMB 2,304,800 thousand (around 
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US$335,901 thousand).  The jo int  venture company was invested 

through a third area investment .  

  Our company and USI Corporat ion increased the investment  

to  Ever Conquest  Globa l Ltd.  in May and August  2019 with the 

amount  of US$40,920 thousand (NT$1,280,71 thousand) and 

US$70,402 thousand (around NT$2,203,644 thousand)  

respect ively.  

  Our company increased the investment  to  Ever Conquest  

Global Ltd.  separately in March and December 2020 in the amount  

of US$18,832 thousand (around NT$570,606 thousand) and 

US$7,483 thousand (NT$213,358 thousand) respect ively.  

  Unt il December 31
s t

,  2020, our company and USI Corporat ion 

has invested US$170,475 thousand (around NT$5,255,588  

thousand) and US$246,670 thousand (around NT$7,645,980  

thousand) respect ively for the jo int  venture company, Ever  

Conquest  Global Ltd.  as well as t ransferred the capita l to re -invest  

the jo int  venture company through Ever Conquest  in US$ 417,145 

thousand. The Jo int  Venture Company re- invested Hong Kong 

Company in June and August  2019 with the amount  of US$ 63,855 

thousand and US$63,855 thousand respect ive ly.  In June and 

August  2019 and in Apr il and December 2020, the re -investment  

to  Gule i Company has accumulated to RMB2,352,400 thousand 

(around US$338,418 thousand) in total.  

  In order to replenish the operat ing capital in Gulei Company,  

the Jo int  Venture Company signed a jo int  venture contract  with 

DOR PO INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED in Hong Kong 

(here inafter referred to  as DOR PO Company)  on June 5
t h

,  2019 to 

invest  Hong Kong Company together.  According to  the jo int  

venture contract , DOR PO Company sha ll contribute US$109,215 

thousand to part icipate in the capital increase in Hong Kong 

company. Up to December 31
st

,  2020, DOR PO Company has 

contr ibuted US$99,108 thousand. It  roughly accounts for 14.7% of 

equity in Hong Kong Company.  
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 b.  In order to  enhance the effect iveness o f asset  management ,  the 

conso lidated company provided 10 pieces of land located at  the 3
r d

 

subsect ion, Yenji Sect ion, Songshan Dist r ict ,  Taipei City that  wer e 

recognized as investment  property to  coordinate with the adjacent  

lands and part icipate in t he urban renewal plan organized by 

Huaku Development  Co.,  Ltd.  (hereinaft er referred to  as Huaku 

Company) in the method of r ight  t ransfer.  An urban renewa l 

development  contract  has been signed, and the performance bond 

of $6,400 thousand has been co llected from the construct ion 

company. The proposal was assessed and approved by Taipei Cit y 

Government  on November 30
th

,  2017. In addit ion, to  ensure the 

smooth deve lopment  and complet ion of the urban renewal plan,  

the conso lidated company and Huaku Company jo int ly signed a 

real estate t rust  contract  with Trust  Division at  E.SUN Bank in 

2017 to jo int ly entrusted Trust  Divis ion, E.SUN Bank to deal wit h 

property r ight  management ,  split t ing and merg ing, and t ransfer & 

disposal o f the construct ion site and the buildings on the sit e  

dur ing the durat ion of the fiduciar y relat ionship .  Up to December  

31
s t

,  2020, emptying out  for handing over has been completed.  

3)  Significant  cont ingency 

  Regarding the accident  of gas explosion happened on the evening 

of July 31
s t

,  2014 invo lving propylene pipeline operat ion carr ied out  by 

the investee company, China General Termina l & Distr ibut ion 

Corporat ion (hereinafter referred to as China Gener al Dist r ibut ion)  

using equity method entrusted by LCY Chemical Corporat ion 

(here inafter referred to  as LCY) , the judgement  of second instance for  

the cr imina l responsibilit y o f the gas explosion was announced on 

Apr il 24
t h

,  2020. The three employees in  China General Dist r ibut ion  

were all acquit ted innocence.   

  China General Dist r ibut ion entered an agreement  with Kaohsiung 

City Government  on February 12
th

,  2015 and provided a bank t ime 

deposit  cert ificate of $227,458 thousand ( including int erest ) for the 

creat ion o f pledge to  Kaohsiung City Government  as the gu arantee for  

the losses suffered from the gas explosion.  Kaohsiung City Government  
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also filed civil proceeding against  China General Dist r ibut ion, LCY 

Chemical Corporat ion, and CPC Corporation, Taiwan successive ly.  I n 

addit ion, Taiwan Power Company applied the execut ion o f provis iona l 

attachment  in the assets held by China General Dist r ibut ion to  the court  

on August  27
t h

 and November 26
t h

,  2015 respect ively.  China Genera l 

Dist r ibut ion has lodged $99,207  thousand at the court in cash to  be 

waived from the provis ional at tachment .  Taiwan Water Corporat ion  

also claimed provisional at tachment  in the assets held by China 

General Dist r ibut ion to the court  on February 3
r d

 and March 2
n d

,  2017 

respect ively.  Unt il February 26
t h

,  2021, the total asset  value held by 

China General Dist r ibut ion under provis ional at tachment  was around 

$9,581 thousand.  

  China General Dist r ibut ion, LCY Chemical Corporat ion, and 

Kaohsiung City Government  entered a t r ipart ite agreement  on July 17
t h

,  

2015 about  the deceased vict ims in the gas explosion and agreed 

negot iat ing the compensat ion set t lement  to the heirs and claimants o f 

the 32 vict ims (hereina fter referred to  as “family members o f the 

vict ims”. Payment  of $12,000  thousand shall be paid to the family 

members o f each vict im,  and the total set tlement  amount  was $ 384,000 

thousand. The set t lement  payment  was paid by LCY Chemica l 

Corporat ion on behalf o f the three part ies in the contract  first .  Bes ides,  

LCY Chemical Corporat ion also represented the three part ies in the 

contract  to negot iate and enter the set t lement  agreement  with the 

family members of the vict ims.  

  For those who were badly injured, China General Dist r ibut ion,  

LCY Chemical Corporat ion, and Kaohsiung City Government  also  

entered a t ripart ite agreement  for the ser ious injury on October 25
t h

,  

2017 and agreed negot iat ing the compensat ion to  the 65 perso ns who  

were badly injured. The set t lement  payment  was paid by China Genera l 

Dist r ibut ion and Kaohsiung City Government  first .  In addit ion, China 

General Dist r ibut ion represented the three part ies in the contract  to 

deal with t he set t lement  with t hose who w ere badly injured in t he gas 

explosion. Set t lement  agreement  has been signed with 64  persons 

among them.  
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  Up to February 26
t h

,  2021, there were some people who suffered 

from loss,  who were vict im o f the gas explosion or their family 

members filed civil ( including civil suit  co llateral to  crimina l 

proceedings) lawsuit  against  China General Dist r ibut ion, LCY 

Chemical Corporat ion, and CPC Corporat ion, Taiwan for compensat ion 

claims. Based on the considerat ion of legal costs,  China Genera l 

Dist r ibut ion set t led down the compensat ion claim o f $ 46,677 thousand 

with the set t led compensat ion amount  of $ 4,519 thousand. The 

remaining amount  of claim in the progress o f lawsuit  and the 

compensat ion to the vict im and those who were badly injured 

ment ioned in the previous paragraph was in total around $ 3,856,447  

thousand. Part of above civil cases (the compensat ion amount  claimed 

was around $1,341,128 thousand) has started to  announce the result  o f 

first  instance one after another from July 22
n d

,  2018. Most  of the cases 

were referred to  the cr imina l judgment  o f first  instance announced then 

and recognized the rat io  o f liabilit y for negligence among Kaohsiung 

City Government ,  LCY Chemical Corporat ion, and China Genera l 

Dist r ibut ion was 4：3：3. China General Dist r ibut ion and LCY Chemica l 

Corporat ion as well as other defendants shall compensate the amount  o f 

around $401,979 thousand (among them,  a court  decision o f $6,194 

thousand was made to  China General Dist r ibut ion for the waive o f the 

compensat ion responsibilit y).  Civil cases that  have been announced but  

not  sett led were filed appeals by China General Dist r ibut ion and have 

been carr ied out  second instance proceeding one after another.  

Moreover,  China General Dist r ibut ion has entered cla im agreement  

with the insurance company. The est imated compensat ion amount  to  the 

deceased vict ims and those who were badly injured and compensat ion 

for the civil proceeding ( including set t led cases) based on the rat io  of 

liabilit y under the judgment  o f fi r st  instance shall be recognized as the 

amount  to  be covered by China Genera l Dist r ibut ion after deduct ing the 

upper limit  o f insurance claim. It  has been est imated $136,375  

thousand of account ing est imate.  However,  the actual amount  of the 

set t lement  and compensat ion above can only be confirmed after the 
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rat io  of responsibilit y that  China General Dist r ibut ion shall share is  

confirmed  in the civil proceeding in t he future.  

 

31.  Foreign currency asset  and liabilit y that  are with significant  impact  

  The fo llowing informat ion is presented in t he summary o f foreign 

currency that  is not  the funct iona l currency at  each ent it y in the 

conso lidated company. The foreign exchange rate disc losed refers to the 

exchange rate of the foreign currency exchanged to  the funct iona l 

currency. Foreign assets and liabilit ies that  are with significant  impact  are 

as below:  

Unit :  Other than the un i t for  exchange ra te is one dol lar,  

the un it  used for  each  currency/  book value is a  thousand dol lar s.  

December 31
st

,  2020 

  

Foreign 

currency  Exchange rate  

Functional 

currency  Book value 

Financial assets         

Monetary item         

USD    $ 10,807   28.480 (USD: NTD)    $ 307,795     $ 307,795 

USD     271   6.5249 (USD: RMB)     1,769      7,721 

RMB     2,092   0.1533 (RMB: USD)     321      9,142 
RMB     87,272   4.3648 (RMB: NTD)     380,924      380,924 

JPY     5   0.2763 (JPY: NTD)     1      1 

          $ 705,583 

Non-monetary 

item 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Associates using 

equity method 

        

  USD     177,912   28.480 (USD: NTD)     5,066,945     $ 5,066,945 

         

Financial 

liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monetary item         
USD     3,805   28.480 (USD: NTD)     108,375     $ 108,375 

RMB     204   0.1533 (RMB: USD)     31      883 

JPY     7,072   0.2763 (JPY:NTD)     1,954      1,954 

EUR     24   35.020 (EUR:NTD)     847      847 

          $ 112,059 

Non-monetary 

item 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Derivative 

instrument 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  RMB     77,600   4.3648 (RMB: NTD)     3,912     $ 3,912 
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December 31st ,  2019 

  

Foreign 

currency  Exchange rate  

Functional 

currency  Book value 

Financial assets         

Monetary item         
USD    $ 11,542   29.980 (USD: NTD)    $ 346,016     $ 346,016 

USD     198   6.9761 (USD: RMB)     1,384      5,948 

RMB     2,941   0.1433 (RMB: USD)     422      12,652 

RMB     85,806   4.2975 (RMB: NTD)     368,753      368,753 

JPY     5   0.2760 (JPY: NTD)     1      1 

          $ 733,370 

Non-monetary 

item 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Associates using 

equity method 

        

  USD     142,273   29.980 (USD: NTD)     4,265,335     $ 4,265,335 
Derivative 

instrument 

   

 

    

  USD     1,730   29.980 (USD: NTD)     677      677 

          $ 4,266,012 

         

Financial 

liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monetary item         

USD     3,459   29.980 (USD: NTD)     103,707     $ 103,707 

RMB     52   0.1433 (RMB: USD)     7      223 

JPY     188   0.2760 (JPY: NTD)     52      52 

          $ 103,982 

Non-monetary 
item 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Derivative 

instrument 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  RMB     72,000   4.2975 (RMB: NTD)     583     $ 583 

 

  The gain or loss on foreign currency exchange (realized and 

unrealized) in the conso lidated company on December 31
st

,  2020 and 2019 

was net  loss o f $12,905 thousand and $12,449 thousand respect ively.  Due 

to the var iety o f foreign cur rency t ransact ion, it  was unable to  disclose 

exchange gain or loss based on each individual currency that  was wit h 

significant  impact .   

32.  Disclosure in the notes  

1) Significant  t ransact ion and re - investment  related informat ion:  

 a. Lending funds to other parties. (None) 

 b.  Providing endorsement  or guarantees to  other part ies.  (None)  

 c. Holding of securities at the end of the period (excluding the port ion held 

due to  investment  in a subsidiar y or an associate,  and the port ion 

held due to  an interest  in a jo int  venture).  (At tached Table 1)  
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 d. Aggregate purchases or sales of the same securities reaching NT$300 million 

or 20 percent of paid-in capital or more. (Attached Table 2)  

 e. Acquisition of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20 percent of paid-in 

capital or more. (None) 

 f.  Disposal of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20 percent of paid-in capital 

or more. (None) 

 g. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching NT$100 million 

or 20 percent of paid-in capital or more. (Attached Table 3) 

 h.  Accounts receivable from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20 

percent of paid-in capital or more. (Attached Table 4) 

 i.  Trading in derivative instruments: Note 7. 

 j.  Others: The business relationship between the parent and the subsidiaries and 

between each subsidiary, and the circumstances and amounts of any significant 

transactions between them. (Attached Table 5) 

2)  Informat ion on re- investment  (At tached Table 6).  

3) Informat ion on investments in t he Mainland Area:  

 a. Information on the investee company, showing the name, principal business 

activities, paid-in capital, method of investment, inward and outward 

remittance of funds, shareholding ratio, profit or loss for the period and 

recognized investment gain or loss, carrying amount of the investment at the 

end of the period, repatriated investment gains, and limit on the amount of 

investment in the Mainland Area. (At tached Table 7)  

 b.  Any of the following significant transactions with investee companies in the 

Mainland Area, either directly or indirectly through a third area, and their 

prices, payment terms, and unrealized gains or losses: (Attached Table 8) 

 (1) The amount and percentage of purchases and the balance and percentage 

of the related payables at the end of the period. 

 (2) The amount and percentage of sales and the balance and percentage of 

the related receivables at the end of the period. 

 (3) The amount  of property t ransact ions and the amount  of the 

resultant  gains or losses.  

 (4) The balance of negot iable inst rument  endorse ment s or 

guarantees or pledges of co llateral at  the end of the per iod 

and the purposes.  
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 (5) The highest  balance, the end of per iod balance, the interest  

rate range, and total current  per iod interest  with respect  to  

financing o f funds.  

 (6) Other transactions that have a material effect on the profit or loss for the 

period or on the financial position, such as the rendering or receiving of 

services. 

4) Informat ion on major shareho lders: an issuer whose stock is listed on the 

TWSE or listed on the TPEx shall disclose the names, numbers of shares 

held,  and shareho lding percentages of shareho lders who ho ld 5 percent  or 

more o f the issuer 's equity.  (Attached Table 9)  

  Other t han the disclosure on at tached Table 1 to  9,  there are no  

other significant  t ransact ions,  re- investments,  and informat ion on the 

investment  in Mainland China that  shall be disclosed.  

33. Informat ion of departments  

1)  Informat ion of operat ing departments: According to  IFRS8 “operat ing 

departments”,  the conso lidated company is a single operat ing department  

for manufactur ing and selling petrochemical products.  Therefore,  no  

informat ion of departments shall be disclosed.  

2)  Financia l informat ion by regions  

  The revenue in our company from the cont inuous operat ions o f the 

external customers is  classified by the country that  customers are 

located as well as the non-current  assets are classified by the regions o f 

where the assets are located. The detailed informat ion is listed below:  

  Revenue from external customers  Non-current assets 

  

2020 

 

2019 

 December 31
st
, 

2020 

 December 31
st
, 

2019 

Taiwan    $ 1,636,875    $ 1,787,714    $ 3,708,090    $ 3,734,652 

Asia     3,988,373     4,948,560     72,967     79,199 

Others     78,298     54,883     -     - 

    $ 5,703,546    $ 6,791,157    $ 3,781,057    $ 3,813,851 
 

  Non-current  assets do not  include financial inst ruments,  deferred 

income tax assets,  and refundable deposit s.  
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3) Informat ion of main customer:  

  Customers who account  for net  sale revenue in the conso lidated 

company for 10% or more:  

Name of the customer  2020  2019 

Customer A    $ 663,182     $ 843,103  
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion and the Subsidiar ies  
Status of ho lding o f secur it ies at  the end of the per iod  

December 31
st

,  2020 
Table 1  Unit : Unless it  is otherwise specified,  

it  shall be NT$ thousand  

Company that holds 
the securities 

Securities and its name 
Relationship with the issuer 

of the securities 
Recognition in accounting 

statement 

End of the period 

Remark Number of shares/ 
units 

Book value 
Shareholding 

ratio (%) 
Fair value 

Asia Polymer 
Corporation 

Stock        

  Common stock, Harbinger Venture 
Capital Corp. 

None Financial assets measured at 
fair value through other 
comprehensive income- 
non-current 

   2,377    $ 18  1.20%   $ 18   

 Common stock, Riselink Venture 
Capital Corp. 

〃 〃    2,632     318  1.67%     318  
 

 Common stock, KHL 1A Venture 
Capital Corp. 

〃 〃    12,044,707     275,462  11.90%    275,462   

 Common stock, USI Corporation Ultimate parent entity 〃    101,355,673     2,290,638  8.53%    2,290,638   
 Common stock, CTCI Corporation None 〃    14,446,107     551,842  1.89%    551,842   
 Common stock, AU Optronics 

Corporation 
〃 〃    9,618,516     134,659  0.10%    134,659   

 Common stock, Wafer Works Corp. 〃 Financial assets measured at 
fair value through other 
comprehensive income- 
current 

   2,017,946     86,368  0.39%    86,368   

 Common stock, Unimicron 
Technology Corp. 

〃 Financial assets measured at 
fair value through profit or 
loss- current 

   300,000     26,220  0.02%    26,220   

 Common stock, Evergreen Marine 
Corporation 

〃 〃    1,693,251     68,915  0.04%    68,915   

 Common stock, Quanta Computer 
Inc. 

〃 〃    200,000     16,180  0.01%    16,180   

 Common stock, United 
Microelectronics Corp. 

〃 〃    450,000     21,218  0.00%    21,218   

 Common stock, G.M.I. Technology 
Inc. 

〃 〃    1,515,800     21,752  1.21%    21,752   

 Common stock, Taiwan Cement Corp. 〃 〃    500,000     21,600  0.01%    21,600   
 Securitized notes        
 Cathay No.1 Real Estate Investment 

Trust Fund 
〃 〃    3,281,000     61,388  -    61,388   

 Beneficiary certificate        
 Mega Diamond Money Market Fund 〃 〃    5,887,835     74,481  -    74,481   
 Capital Money Market Fund 〃 〃    2,152,072     35,004  -    35,004   
 Jih Sun Money Market Fund 〃 〃    16,818,904     251,443  -    251,443   
 Prudential Financial Money Market 

Fund 
〃 〃    3,137,157     50,053  -    50,053   

 
(cont inued)  
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Company that holds 
the securities 

Securities and its name 
Relationship with the issuer 

of the securities 
Recognition in accounting 

statement 

End of the period 

Remark Number of shares/ 
units 

Book value 
Shareholding 

ratio (%) 
Fair value 

 Taishin 1699 Money Market Fund None Financial assets measured at 
fair value through profit or 
loss- current 

   12,021,036    $ 164,038  -   $ 164,038   

 CTBC Hua Win Money Market Fund 〃 〃    5,672,048     63,002  -    63,002   
 FSITC Taiwan Money Market Fund 〃 〃    3,564,088     55,006  -    55,006   
 Hua Nan Kirin Money Market Fund 〃 〃    6,381,916     77,000  -    77,000   
APC(BVI) Holding 

Co.,Ltd. 
Stock        

  Common stock, Budworth Investment 
Ltd. 

〃 Financial assets measured at 
fair value through other 
comprehensive income- 
non-current 

   40,467     10  4.45%    10   

 Special stock, Silicon Technology 
Investment (Cayman) Corp. 

〃 〃    1,139,776     57,117  2.19%    57,117   

 Special stock D, NeuroSky, Inc. 〃 〃    2,397,364     -  0.37%    -  （Remark 1） 
 Solargiga Energy Holdings Ltd. 〃 〃    15,863,333     17,480  0.49%    17,480   
 Common stock, Teratech Corp. 〃 〃    112,000     -  0.67%    -  （Remark 1） 
 Preferred stock, TGF Linux 

Communication, Inc. 
〃 Financial assets measured at 

fair value through profit or 
loss- non-current 

   300,000     -  -    -  （Remark 1） 

 Preferred stock Sohoware, Inc. 〃 〃    450,000     -  -    -  （Remark 1） 
 Preferred stock, Boldworks, Inc. 〃 〃    689,266     -  -    -  （Remark 1） 
APC Investment 

Co.,Ltd. 
Stock        

 Common stock, USI Corporation Ultimate parent entity Financial assets measured at 
fair value through profit or 
loss- current 

   44,808     1,013  -    1,013   

 Common stock, Taiwan Cement Corp. None 〃    300,000     12,960  0.01%    12,960   
 Common stock, United 

Microelectronics Corp. 
〃 〃    150,000     7,072  -    7,072   

 Common stock, Evergreen Marine 
Corporation 

〃 〃    564,416     22,972  0.01%    22,972   

 Common stock, Quanta Computer 
Inc. 

〃 〃    100,000     8,090  -    8,090   

 Common stock, Unimicron 
Technology Corp. 

〃 〃    150,000     13,110  0.01%    13,110   

 Common stock, G.M.I. Technology 
Inc. 

〃 〃    492,900     7,073  0.39%    7,073   

 Beneficiary certificate        
 Cathay Taiwan Money Market Fund None Financial assets measured at 

fair value through profit or 
loss- current 

   499,525     6,261  -    6,261   

         
         
Remark 1: Due to the recognit ion as investment  loss in t he past  few years,  the book  value for the long-term equity investment  to  the investee company is zero.  
Remark 2: Please refer to  Table 6 and Table 7 for the equit y informat ion related to the investee subsidiar ies,  associates,  and  joint  venture.  
 

(cont inued)  

 



- 97 - 

Asia  Pol ymer  Corpora t ion and the Subsidiar i es  

Accumula ted purchas ing or  sel l ing the  same marketable  secur i t ies  in  the  amount  of NT$300 mi l l ion or  20% paid -in  capi ta l  or  more  

January 1 s t  t o December  31 s t ,  2020 

Table  2 

 

Uni t : Unless  i t  i s  otherwise speci fi ed ,   

i t  sha ll  be NT$ thou sand 

 

Name of the 
company 

conducting the 
trading 

Type and name of the 
marketable securities 

Recognition in 
accounting statement 

Trading 
party 

Relationship 

Beginning of the period (opening) Purchases Sales End of the period (closing) (remark) 

Number of units Amount Number of units Amount Number of units Selling price Book cost Disposal gains Number of units Amount 

Asia Polymer 
Corporation 

Stock              

  Ever Conquest Global 
Limited., 

 

Investment using 
equity method 

 Investee 
company 

using equity 
method 

   144,160,000   $ 4,265,335    26,315,000   $ 783,964    -   $ -   $ -   $ -    170,475,000   $ 5,066,945 
    (Remark1) 

               
 Fund              
 Taishin 1699 Money 

Market Fund 
Financial assets 

measured at fair 
value through 
profit or loss- 

current 

－ －    18,356,835    248,000    35,947,285    490,000    42,283,084    576,189    574,000    2,189    12,021,036    164,038 
     (Remark 2) 

 Taishin Ta-Chong Money 
Market Fund 

〃      3,832,822    54,400    21,475,665    307,000    25,308,487    361,769    361,400    369    -    - 
 

 CTBC Hua Win Money 
Market Fund 

〃      14,112,664    155,000    32,094,158    356,000    40,534,774    449,485    448,000    1,485    5,672,048    63,002 
  (Remark 3) 

 
FSITC Money Market 

〃 － －    957,942    171,000    2,239,281    402,000    3,197,223    573,842    573,000    842    -    - 
 

 FSITC Taiwan Money 

Market Fund 

〃 － －    12,624,735    193,000    12,026,785    185,300    21,087,432    324,749    323,300    1,449    3,564,088    55,006 

    (Remark 4) 

 

Remark 1: Book cos t  includes  ini t i a l  acqui s it ion cos t ,  inves tment  profi t  of loss  recogni zed under  equity method,  fore ign exchange ,  and adjus tm ents  of change  in  ne t va lue .  

Remark 2: Clos ing amount  shown in  the  account  book of $ 164,038  thousand i s the  balance  of inves tment  c os t  $164,000 thousand plus  va lua tion adjustment of $38  thousand . 

Remark 3: Clos ing amount  shown in  the  account  book of $ 63,002  thousand i s the balance  of inves tment  cos t  $ 63,000 thousand  plus va lua t ion adjustment  of $2  thousand . 

Remark 4: Clos ing amount  sh own in  the  account  book of $ 55,006  thousand i s the balance  of inves tment  cos t  $ 55,000 thousand  plus va lua t ion adjustment  of $6  thousand . 
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Asia  Pol ym er  Corporat ion and the Subsidiar ies  

Amount  of purchasing or  sel l ing tr ansact ion with r elated par t ies achiev ed NT$100 mil lion  or  20% paid -in capi ta l or  more 

January 1 s t  to December  31 s t ,  2020 

Table 3 Uni t :  Un less i t  i s otherwise specifi ed,   

i t  shal l be NT$ thousand 

 

Name of company 

executing purchases (sales) 
Name of the trading party Relationship 

Status of transaction 
Transaction condition differs from general 

condition and its reason 
Accounts receivable (payable) 

Purchases (sales) Amount 

Percentage of 

total purchases 
(sales) 

Credit period Unit price Credit period Balance 

Percentage of total 

accounts receivable 
(payable) 

Asia Polymer Corporation USI Corporation Ultimate parent 

entity 

Sales  ( $ 662,692 )  (  11.62% ) 60 days No significant 

difference 

No significant 

difference 

Accounts receivable- 

related party 

  $ 189,988     25.58% 

USI  Trading (Shanghai) 

Co., Ltd. 

USI Corporation Ultimate parent 

entity 

Purchases    119,428    3.84% 30 days No significant 

difference 

No significant 

difference 

Accounts payable- 

related party 

 (  33,203 )  (  11.54% ) 
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion and the Subsidiar ies  

Amount  of accounts receivable from relat ed part ies achieving NT$100 million or 20% paid - in capital or more 

December 31
st

,  2020 

Table 4  Unit : Unless it  is otherwise specified,  

it  shall be NT$ thousand  

 

Name of the company 

recognized as accounts 

receivable 

Trading party Relationship 
Balance of accounts receivable from the 

related party 

Turnover 

rate 

Overdue accounts receivable from the 

related parties 

Accounts 

receivable from the 

related parties- 

received amount 

after period 

(Remark 2) 

Recognition 

of allowance 

for bad debts Amount Handling method 

Asia Polymer Corporation USI Corporation  Ultimate parent entity Accounts receivable- 

related parties 

  $ 189,988 3.94   $ - -   $ 189,988 Remark 1 

          

 

Remark 1: No need to recognize allowance for  bad debts after evaluat ion.  

Remark 2: “Aft er per iod” refers to the per iod between January 1
st

 and March 5
t h

,  2021.  
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion and the Subsidiar ies  

Business relat ionship,  important  t ransact ion, and the amount  between the parent  company and subs idiar ies as well as between subsid iar ies  

January 1
s t

 to  December 31
s t

,  2020 

Table 5  Unit : Unless it  is otherwise specified,  

                                                                                                               it  shall be NT$ thousand 

 

Code 

(Remark 

1) 

Name of the trader Transaction party 

Relationship with 

the trader (Remark 

2) 

Status of transaction 

Accounting subject 
Amount (Remark 

4) 
Trading condition 

Percentage of 

consolidated total 

revenue or total 

asset (Remark 3) 

0 Asia Polymer Corporation APC Investment Corporation (1) Non-operating income and expense- 

rent income 

  $ 142 No significant 

difference - 

0 Asia Polymer Corporation USI Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (1) Accounts receivable- related parties    12,462 No significant 

difference 0.07% 

    Sales    63,613 No significant 

difference 

1.12% 

    Commission expense    804 No significant 

difference 0.01% 

    Other payables- related parties    98 No significant 

difference - 

1 USI International Corp. USI Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (3) Other receivables- related parties    7,914 No significant 

difference 

0.05% 

    Other payables- related parties    892 No significant 

difference - 

    Non-operating income and expense- 

rent income 

   1,490 No significant 

difference 

0.03% 

    Management service fee    124 No significant 

difference - 

 

Remark 1: Informat ion o f business between the parent  company and the subsidiary shall be marked clear ly on the co lumn o f code.  The code pr incip le is as below:  

 (1) Fill 0 for the parent company. 

 (2) Each subsidiary shall be coded from number 1 and followed sequentially according to the name of subsidiary. 

Remark 2: The relat ionship with the t rader includes the fo llowing three types,  and just  mark the type:  

 (1) Parent company to the subsidiary. 

 (2) Subsidiary to the parent company. 

 (3) Subsidiary to subsidiary. 

Remark 3: For the recognit ion o f assets or liabilit ies,  the calculat ion of the t ransact ion amount  in the percentage o f total revenue or  total asset  shall be based on closing balan ce 

account ing for the conso lidated total asset .  If it  is profit  or loss,  it  shall be calculated by the accumulated amount  dur ing  the per iod account ing for the conso lidated total 

revenue.  

Remark 4: It  has been fully writ ten off when prepar ing the conso lidat ed financia l statement .  
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion and the Subsidiar ies  

Informat ion of the investee company and the locat ion  

January 1
s t

 to  December 31
s t

,  2020 

Table 6  Uni t :  Un less i t  i s otherwise specifi ed,   

i t  shal l be NT$ thousand 

Name of the 

investment 

company 

Name of the investee 

company 
Location Main business item 

Original investment amount Shareholding by the end of the period 
Current profit (loss) in 

the investee company 

Investment profit 

(loss) recognized in 

the current period 

Note 
End of current period End of previous year 

Number of 

shares 
Ratio 

Amount of book 

value 

Asia Polymer 

Corporation 

APC (BVI) Holding Co., 

Ltd 

British Virgin 

Islands 

Re-investment   $ 392,306   $ 392,306    11,342,594 100.00%   $      517,012   $ 15,182   $ 15,182 Subsidiary (Remark 1) 

 (  US$13,774,806 )  (   US$ 13,774,806)      

 APC Investment Co., Ltd. Taipei, Taiwan Investment    200,000    200,000    20,000,000 100.00% 132,491    33,542    33,542 Subsidiary (Remark 1) 

 USI International Corp. British Virgin 

Islands 

Re-investment    59,808    79,744    2,100,000 70.00% 63,415    5,387    3,771 Subsidiary (Remark 1) 

  (  US$2,100,000 ) ( US$2,800,000)      
 China General Plastics 

Corporation 

Taipei, Taiwan Producing and selling PVC 

sheet, plastic leather, plastic 

pipe, plastic pumping 

tablets, plastic powder, 

profile extrusion material, 

alkali-chlorine, and other 

relevant products 

   247,412    247,412    44,653,510 8.07% 782,997    1,634,185    131,866 Investee company using 

equity method 

 China General Terminal & 

Distribution Corporation 

Taipei, Taiwan Storage and transportation of 

petrochemical Materials 

   41,082    41,082    19,918,184 33.33% 315,711    69,385    23,128 Investee company using 

equity method 

 Swanson Plastics 

Corporation 

Taipei, Taiwan Producing and selling PVC 

shrink film and industrial 

multi-layer packaging film 

   75,242    75,242    12,266,779 7.95% 206,857    247,423    19,669 Investee company using 

equity method 

 ACME Electronics 

Corporation 

Taipei, Taiwan Producing and selling 

manganese zinc ferrite, 

flexible ferrite, magnetic 

powder, and magnetic core 

   61,348    61,348    6,056,623 3.31% 42,939    33,393    1,105 Investee company using 

equity method 

 Taiwan United Venture 

Capital Corp. 

Taipei, Taiwan Investing high-tech business    52,791    52,791    3,913,533 8.33% 21,472  (  4,172 )  (  347 ) Investee company using 

equity method 

 Thintec Materials 

Corporation 

Taipei, Taiwan Manufacturing reinforced 

plastic products 

   -    36,250    - -    -    15    4  Investee company using 

equity method 

 USI Optronics Corporation Taipei, Taiwan Manufacturing and selling 

sapphire single crystal 

   59,725    59,725    5,972,464 9.20% 12,579  (  62,320 )  (  5,735 ) Investee company using 

equity method 

 Ever Conquest Global Ltd. British Virgin 
Islands 

Re-investment    4,855,128    4,105,677    170,475,000 40.87% 5,066,945  (  113,719 )  (  44,058 ) Investee company using 
equity method  (  US$170,475,000 )  (  US$144,160,000 )      

APC (BVI) 

Holding Co., 

Ltd 

ACME Electronics 

(Cayman) Corp. 

Cayman 

Islands 

Re-investment    149,375    149,375    8,316,450 16.64% 200,825    9,485     - Company invested by APC 

(BVI) Holding Co., Ltd, 

using equity method 

 (    US$5,244,903 )  (  US$5,244,903 )      

 USI International Corp. British Virgin 

Islands 

Re-investment    25,632    34,176    900,000 30.00% 27,178    5,387    - Company invested by APC 

(BVI) Holding Co., Ltd, 

using equity method 

(Remark 1) 

 (  US$900,000 )  (  US$1,200,000 )      

APC Investment 

Co., Ltd. 

ACME Electronics 

Corporation 

Taipei, Taiwan Producing and selling 

manganese zinc ferrite, 

flexible ferrite, magnetic 

powder, and magnetic core 

   14,889    14,889    1,884,548 1.03% 13,361    33,393    - Company invested by APC 

Investment Co.,Ltd. 

using equity method 

 Swanson Technologies 

Corporation 

Taipei, Taiwan Producing and selling EVA 

packaging film 

   30,000    30,000    3,000,000 15.00%  (       16,165 )  (  14,109 )    - Company invested by APC 

Investment Co.,Ltd. 

using equity method 

Ever Conquest 

Global Ltd. 

Ever Victory Global Ltd. British Virgin 

Islands 

Re-investment    11,880,290    11,130,838    417,145,000 67.40% 12,398,596  (  153,485 )    - Company invested by Ever 

Conquest Global Ltd., 

using equity method 

 (  US$417,145,000 )  (   US$390,830,000 )    ( US435,344,000)  ( US$ 5,198,000 )  

Ever Victory 

Global Ltd. 

Dynamic Ever Investments 

Ltd. 

Hong Kong Re-investment    16,770,448    13,906,385    588,850,000 85.00% 17,523,490  (  175,395 )    - Company invested by Ever 

Victory Global Ltd., 

using equity method 
 (   US$588,850,000 )  (   US$488,286,000 )    (US$615,291,000)  ( US$ 5,942,000 )  

 

Remark 1:  I t shal l be ful l y wr i t ten off when  preparing the consol idated financial  statemen t .  
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion and the Subsidiar ies  

Informat ion of investment  in Mainland China  

January 1
s t

 to  December 31
s t

,  2020 

Ta ble  7  Uni t :  Unl e s s  i t  i s  o t h er wi se  sp e ci f i e d ,   

i t  s ha l l  b e  NT $  t h ou sa n d  

 

Name of the investee 

company in Mainland China 
Main business item 

Paid-in capital (Remark 

3) 

Investment method 

(Remark 1) 

Accumulated investment 

amount transferred from 

Taiwan in the beginning 

of the period 

Transferred or recovered investment amount in the 

current period 
Accumulated investment 

amount transferred from 

Taiwan by the end of the 

period 

Profit or loss of the 

current period in the 

investee company 

(Remark 3) 

Shareholding 

ratio directly 

or indirectly 

by our 

company 

Investment profit (loss) 

recognized in the current 

period (Remark 3) 

Book value of the 

investment by the end of 

the period (Remark 4) 

Repatriation of 

investment profit by the 

end of period Transferred Recovered 

Yuefeng Electronics 

(Kunshan) Co., Ltd. 

Manufacturing and 

selling manganese zinc 

ferrite and magnetic 

core 

  $ 875,048  (2)   $ 118,971    $ -    $ -    $ 118,971  B  16.64%   $ 1,220    $ 130,641    $ -  

 (     US$30,725,000) ACME Electronics 

(Cayman) Corp. 

 ( US$ 4,177,369)    ( US$ 4,177,369元)   $ 7,332      

USI Trading (Shanghai)  

Co., Ltd. 

Selling chemical 

products and 

equipment 

   71,200  (2)    86,454     -     -     86,454  B 100.00%    11,497     120,346     -  

 ( US$2,500,000) APC (BVI) 

Holding Co., 

Ltd 

 (US$ 3,035,601 )    ( US$ 3,035,601 )    11,497      

Fujian Gulei Petrochemical 

Company Limited 

Crude oil processing and 

manufacturing 

petroleum products 

   40,655,493  (2)    3,789,932     706,572      4,496,504  A 11.71%  (  40,514 )    4,723,802     -  

 ( RMB 9,314,400,000) Dynamic Ever 

Investments 

Ltd.,(Remark 2) 

 ( US$ 133,073,466 )  ( US$ 24,809,406 )    -   ( US$ 157,882,871 )  (  330,217 )             

 

Accumulated investment amount transferred from 
Taiwan to Mainland China by the end of the period 

Investment amount approved by Investment Board, 
Ministry of Economic Affairs 

Limitation of investment amount in Mainland China 
regulated by Investment Board, Ministry of Economic 

Affairs 

$4,839,207 (Remark 5) $6,374,838 $- 
（US$169,915,978） （US$223,835,608） （Remark 6） 

 

Re ma rk  1 :  I n v e st m e nt  m et h o d i n clu d e s t h e fo l l o wi n g  t hr e e  t y p e s,  a n d  ju s t  n e e d to  ma rk  t h e t yp e :  

(1 )  Direct investment in Mainland China. 

(2 )  Re - i n v e st m e n t  t o  Ma i nla n d C hi na  t hr ou g h  a  t h i r d  a r ea  ( p le a se  r e ma rk  t h e in v e s t m e nt  c o m pa n y i n  th e  t h i r d  a r ea ) .  

( 3 )  O th e r  m e t ho d s .  

Re ma rk  2 :  T h e  i n v e st m e n t  wa s  t h rou g h  E v er  C on qu e s t  G l o ba l  L t d .  w i t h  sha r e h ol d i ng  r a t i o  o f  4 0 .8 7 %  i n  a  th i r d  a r ea  t o  r e - i nv e s t  6 7 .4 0 %  i n  E v er  Vi ct or y  G l oba l  L t d .  b e for e  r e - i n v e st in g  8 5 .0 0 %  i n  D y na mi c  E v er  I n v e st m e n t s  L t d .  i n  or d e r  to  i n di r e c t l y  i n v e s t  

5 0 % o f  ca p i ta l  in  Fu j ia n  Gu l ei  P et r o c h e mi ca l  Co m pa n y  Li m i t e d .  

Re ma rk  3 :  I n  t h e c olu m n  o f  in v e s t m e nt  p ro f i t  or  l o s s  r e c o g ni z e d i n  th e  cu r r e nt  y ea r :  

(1 )  Please mark if the investment is still under preparation and without any investment profit or loss for the current period. 

(2 )  T he  ba si s  o f r e co g ni z i n g i n v e s t m e nt  p ro f i t  or  l o s s  ca n  b e cla s s i f i e d  i n t o  t h e  fo l l o wi n g t hr e e t yp e ;  p l ea se  r e ma rk .  

A .  Financial statement audited by international public accounting firms that work with CPA Associations R.O.C. (Taiwan). 

B .  F i na n cia l  s t a t e m e nt  t ha t  ha s b e e n a u di t e d  b y t he  c er t i f i ed  a c c ou n ta nt s  a p p o in t e d b y th e  pa r e nt  co m pa n y  i n  Ta iwa n .  

C .  O th e r s.  

Re ma rk  4 :  I t  wa s  ca l cu la t ed  b y th e  e x cha n g e  r a t e  o n  D e c e m b er  3 1
s t

,  2 0 2 0 .  

Re ma rk  5 :  I t  i s  t h e  co m pa n y  t ha t  ou r  c o m pa ny  i n di r e ct l y  i n v e st e d  i n  Ma i n la n d  C hi na  t hr ou g h AP C(B VI)H ol d i ng  C o .  L t d .  r e - i nv e s t i n g S i l i c o n  Te c h n ol o gy  I n v e st m e n t  ( Ca y ma n)  C or p. (ST IC )  a n d S ola rgi ga  E n erg y  H ol di n g s  L td .  

Re ma rk  6 :  I t  f o l l o ws  t h e o ff i c ia l  l e t t er  N o.  S h ou  Ko n g Z i  1 0 8 0 0 2 6 29 4 0  i s su e d b y I n v e s t m en t  Boa rd ,  Mi n i st ry  o f E c o no m i c Affa i r s  o n  F e bru a r y  2 6
t h

,  2 0 2 0 .  I n  or d er  t o  o bta in  th e  c e r t i f i ca t e  i s su e d  b y  I ndu s t r i a l  D e v e lo p m e n t  Bu r ea u ,  Mi ni s t r y  o f  E c o n o mi c  

Affa i r s  a s  t h e  e nt er pr i s e  m e e t i n g t h e bu si n e s s  s c o p e o f  t h e  h ea d qu a r t e r s ,  ou r  c o m pa ny  d o e s n ot  s et  u p  a n y l i mi ta t i on  o n in v e s t m e nt  a mou n t .  
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion and the Subsidiar ies  

Significant  t ransact ion, pr ice,  payment  term, unrealized pro fit  or loss,  and other rel evant  informat ion direct ly or indirect ly related to the investee company in Mainland China  

via a third area  

January 1
s t

 to  December 31
s t

,  2020 

Table 8  Unit : Unless it  is otherwise specified,  

it  shall be NT$ thousand  

 

Name of the investee company 

in Mainland China 
Transaction subject Amount Percentage Price 

Transaction condition Accounts receivable (payable) 
Unrealized profit or 

loss 
Remark 

Payment term 
Comparison to the 

general trading 
Amount Ratio 

USI Trading  (Shanghai) Co., 

Ltd 

Sales revenue   $ 63,613 1.12% No significant 

difference 

Payment collection 

within 90 days 

after sales 

No significant 

difference 

  $ 12,462 1.68%   $ -  － 

 Commission expenses    804 - － － －    -  -    -  － 

 Non-operating income 

and expense- rental 

income 

   1,490 - － － －    -  -    -  － 

 Management service 

fee 

   124 - － － －    -  -    -  － 

 Other payables to 

related parties 

   990 - － － －    -  -    -  － 

 Other receivables 

from related parties 

   7,914 - － － －    -  -    -  － 

 

Remark: It  shall be fully writ ten o ff when prepar ing the conso lidated financial statement .  
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Table 9  

 

Name of the main shareholder 
Shares 

Number of shares held Shareholding ratio 

Union Polymer International Investment Corporation 210,044,924 36.08% 

 

Remark: Informat ion on major shareho lders  is calculated by Taiwan Depository & Clear ing Corporat ion based on the last  business day by the end o f the quarter for the informat ion on 

the common stock and specia l stock that  have been completed non-physical regist rat ion and delivery ( inc luding t reasury stock) in the company held by shareho lders for  more than 

5% in total.  The recorded capit al stock in our conso lidated financ ial statement  might be differe nt  from the actual completed non-physical regist rat ion and delivery o f shares due to  

different  calculat ion basis for preparat ion.  

 

 

 


